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Date Issued: September 13, 2018 

Mountain Lakes Board of Edueation 
400 Boulevard 

September 13, 2018 

Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Mountain Lakes School District 
Morris County, New Jersey 

Dear Board Members: 

Mountain Lakes, NJ 07046 
973-334-8280 

The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) of the Mountain Lakes School District (District) for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data 
and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management 
of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this 
report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 
2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's 
financial activities have been included. 

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, 
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's 
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic financial 
statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes 
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District 
is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the revised Single 
Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
"Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards", 
and the state Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal 
Grants, State Grants and State Aid". Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's 
report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws, regulations, findings and 
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this section. 

1. REPORTING ENTITY SERVICES: The Mountain Lakes School District is an independent 
reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by GASB No. 14. All 
funds and account groups of the District are included in this report. The Mountain Lakes Board 
of Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity. 

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 
12. These include regular programs, as well as the Lake Drive School for Deaf and Hard of 

1 



Date Issued: September 13,2018 

Hearing Children. Lake Drive provides comprehensive educational services to deaf and hard of 
hearing children ranging in age from infants through high school. The following details the 
changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last five years. 

Fiscal Year 
2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2007-2008 
2008-2009 
2009-20\0 
2010-2011 
2011-2012 
2012-2013 
2013-2014 
2014-2015 
2015-2016 
2016-2017 
2017-2018 

Average Daily Enrollment 

Student Enrollment· 
1627 
1591 
1603 
1635 
1642 
1626 
1619 
1638 
1585 
1556 
1534 
1595 
1532 

Percent Change 
-.99% 
-2.2% 
+.75% 
+.02% 
+1% 
-1.01% 
-.004% 
+1.2% 
-3.24% 
-1.89% 
-1.43% 
+4.00"10 
-4.00% 

·Includes non-resident students, Boonton Township students and students at the Lake Drive 
School for Deaf and Hard of Hearing Children. 

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Mountain Lakes Public Schools 2018-
2019 budget contains all the necessary elements to provide our students with a quality education. 
The district continues to provide a great diversity of courses at all levels. Consequently, we 
continue to offer a large number of courses, particularly at the high school level. Every effort, 
however, has been made to hold staff levels as well as general budget expenditures. The Board 
of Education recognizes the difficult position of our state and local economy and is making every 
effort to act responsibly. Despite the pressure on schools to reduce services, our budget supports 
our educational programs at the same levels as the prior year. There are no courses cut from the 
curriculum, class sizes remain relatively consistent. 

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: Respecting the difficult times we face, the Board worked closely with 
the Administration to develop a 2018-2019 Budget that reflects strong spending discipline as 
well as significant new sources of savings. The budget maintains our excellent educational 
program, while also addressing critical building repair needs. We have proposed over $398,298 
for capital outlay projects including: floor covering, furniture/cabinet replacement & upgrade, 
and heat system repairs in Mountain Lakes High School; Alertus System and air condition, phase 
n in Briarcliff Middle School; replacement of cabinets, repair/replacement unit ventilation, 
Alertus System and gym floor repairs in Wildwood Elementary School; exterior trim, floor 
covering, and temperature controls in Lake Drive School; school bus replacement, grand stands 
(ramp), tech lease purchase and State SDA Assessment. 
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Date Issued: September 13, 2018 

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the 
District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are 
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements inconformity with generally 
accepted accounting principals (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be 
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by 
management. 

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for 
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also 
subject to periodic evaluation by the District management. 

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy 
of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial 
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District bas complied with applicable laws 
and regulations. 

S. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains 
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal 
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the 
municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue 
fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital 
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended 
for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a 
line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re­
appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are 
reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2018. 

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect generally 
accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and 
account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in "Notes to the Financial 
Statements," Note 1. 

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION: At June 30, 2018 the District's outstanding debt total was 
$24,991,215. In September 2017, the residents of the borough authorized an additional 
$17,216,215 in debt. This authorization includes a state subsidy of approximately 3.3 million. 
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8. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large parts by state 
statute as detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a 
cash management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected 
from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). 
GUOPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with 
a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public 
funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in 
accordance with the Act. 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not 
limited to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft 
insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds. 

10. OTHER INFORMATION: 

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public 
accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of T.M. Vrabel & 
Associates, LLC was selected by the Board of Education. In addition to meeting the 
requirements set forth in state statures, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of 
the revised Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the related Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, "Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards," and state Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB. The 
auditor's report on the general purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund 
statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports 
related specifically to t,he single audit are included in the single audit section of this report. 

11. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the 
Mountain Lakes School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens 
and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support to the development 
and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been 
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff. 

Respectfully submitted, 

A.u ~u.(!.u· 
Anne Mucci, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

DanielA. 0 

School B . ess AdministratorlBoard Secretary 
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable President and 
Members oflhe Board of Education 
Borough of Mountain Lakes School District 
County of Morris, New Jersey 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Borough of Mountain Lakes 
School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements 
which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for tile Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Alldltor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
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the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation ofthe financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position ofthe governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District as of June 30, 2018, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Ollter Mailers 

Required Supplementary in/ormation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis on Page 14 through 20 and budgetary comparison information of schedules C-I and C-
2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic fmancial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other In/ormation 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
introductory section, and other supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund financial 
statements, long-term debt schedules, statistical tables and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
and State Financial Assistance as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards: and New 
Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants and State Aid 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the Schedules of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and 
individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal 
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Awards and State Financial Assistance is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures and applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 13, 2018 
on our consideration of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's internal control over financial 
reporting and on out tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on 
the internal control over financial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfonned 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Borough of Mountain Lakes School 
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Montville, New Jersey 
September 13, 2018 

~!,~ 
Public School Accountant 
License No. CS000689 

Chris C. W. Hwang 
Certified Public Accountant 
License No. CC033704 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of Mountain Lakes School District financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Please read 
it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page I and the District's financial_statements, which begin on page 23. 

FINANCIAL mGHLIGHTS 

• The district's net position decreased $118,000 as a result of this year's operations. Net position of the district's business-type 
activities increased $5,000 and net position of governmental activities decreased by $123,000, or 3.0 percent 

• Total cost of all of the District's operating programs was $52.2 million in 2017-2018 as compared to $40.6 million in 2016-2017. 
• During the 2017-2018 school year, the District had tax and other program revenues that were less than expenses for governmental 

activities by $838,000. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (on pages 
23 and 24) provide information about the activities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view on the District's finances. 
Fund financial statements start on page 27. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the 
short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund fmancial statements also report the District's operation in more detail 
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the District's most financially significant funds 

Reporting the District as a Whole 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

Our analysis of the District as a whole begins on page 16. One of the most important questions asked about the District's finances is 
"Is the District as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These 
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most 
private-sector companies. Accrual of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. 

These two statements report the District's net pOSition and changes in them. You can think of the District's net position, the difference 
between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure the District's financial health, or financial position. Over time, Increases or 
decreases in the District's net position are one indicator whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to 
consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the District's property tax base, and the condition of the District's 
capital assets to assess the overall health of the District. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the District into two kinds of activities: 

• Governmental activities: most of the District's basic services are reported here, including general administration. Local taxes, 
tuition (from Boonton Township and the Lake Drive sending districts) and state and federal aid fmance most of these activities. 

• Business-type-activities: the operation of the District's Food Service operation is its only proprietary fund, and is shown on 
pages 31, 32 and 33. 

14 



Reporting the District', Most Significant Fund, 

Fund Financial Statements 

Our analysis of the District's major limds begins on page 18. The limd financial statements begin on page 27 and provide detailed 
information about the most significant limds-not the District as a whole. Somelimds are required to be established by State law. The 
District's two kinds oflimds, governmental and proprietary, use different accounting approacbes. 

Governmental fonds: most of the District's basic services are reported in governmental limds, which focus on how money flows into 
and out of those limds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These limds are reported using an accounting 
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. 
The governmental limd statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic 
services it provides. Governmentallimd information helps one determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can 
be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmentallimds in a reconciliation on 
page 29. 

Proprietary funds: when the District charges customers for the full cost of the services it provides, these services are reported in 
proprietary limds. Proprietary limds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities. 10 fact, the District's enterprise limds (a component of business type limds) are the same as the business­
type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, 
for proprietary funds. 

The District u Tru,tee 

Reporting the District's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Unemployment Compensation Trust, Scholarship Funds and Agency Funds. All of the 
District's fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on 
pages 35 and 36. We exclude these activities from the District's other financial statements because the District cannot use these assets 
to finance its operations. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these limds are used for their intended 
purposes. 
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THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

Our analysis below focuses on the net position (Table I) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the District's governmental and 
business-type activities as of June 30. 

Table 1 
Net Posillon (In Thousands) 

Govemmental Business-type Total 
Activjties Activites PrirmC£ Go:.:em!!l'lnt 
~ E.ll ~ ~ ~ 6Q11 

Current and other assets $ 2,449 $ 3,286 $ 138 $ 142 $ 2,587 $ 3,428 
Long term receivables 
Capital assets 24,378 24,473 5 7 24,383 24,480 

Total assets 26,827 27,759 143 149 26,970 27.908 
Deferred outflows of resources 4,107 4,950 4,107 4.950 
Long-term debt outstanding 10,394 11,727 10,394 11,727 
Aggregate net pension liability 13,294 16,295 13,294 16,295 
Other liabilities 530 498 68 79 598 5TI 

Total liabilities 24,218 28,520 68 79 24,286 28.599 
Deferred inflows of resources 2,736 87 2,736 87 
Net position: 

Net investment in capital assets 14,445 13,324 5 7 14,450 13,331 
Restricted 708 1,302 708 1,302 
Unrestricted (deficit) ~lI,I73) ~IO,523) 70 63 ~II,103) (10,460) 

Total net position $ 3,980 $ 4,103 $ 75 $ 70 $ 4,055 $ 4.173 

Net position of the District's governmental activities decreased by 3.0 percent Unrestricted net position, the part of net position that 
can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal 
requirements - decreased $650,000. Restricted net position, those restricted mainly for capital projects decreased by $576,000. Both 
net asset categories benefited from increased economic activity, which resulted in actual revenues exceeding budgeted revenues 
except for interest on investments. The net investment in capital assets increased by S 1,121,000. 
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Table 2 
Changes In Net Position (In thousands) 

Governmental Business-type Total 
Activities Activites PronaO! Qgv~ml!!lnt 

2m 2017 W! 2017 m 2ru1 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for Services 1,097 919 668 721 1,765 1,640 
Operating Grants and Contributions 15,908 4,814 5 6 15,913 4,820 

General revenues: 
Property Twa:s 21,193 20,697 21,193 20,697 
Tuition 12,748 13,072 12,748 13,072 
Federal and State Aid 94 54 94 54 
Interest and Investment Earnings 35 36 
Capital Lease Canceled 150 150 
Other General Revenues 144 190 144 190 
Transfer ~32l (36) 39 36 

Total Revenues: 51,330 39,710 713 763 52,043 40,473 

~r2e!l!m e1!l1en~es il~ll!gin& inilGct e1!l1~n~es 
Instruction: 

Regular 18,673 14,323 18,673 14,323 
Special 10,660 8,092 10,660 8,092 
Other instruciton 1,998 1,587 1,998 1,587 

Support services: 
Tuition 902 984 902 984 
Student and instruction related services 8,358 6,235 8,358 6,235 
School administrative services 2,900 2,124 2,900 2,124 
General and business administrative services 1,285 1,018 1,285 1,018 
Plant operations and maintenance 4,640 3,941 4,640 3,941 
Pupil transportation 460 358 460 358 

Special schools 1,278 901 1,278 901 
SDA Debt Service Assessment 48 48 48 48 
Interest on long-tenn debt 250 272 250 272 

Food Services 708 716 708 716 

Total E'.lqJenses 51,452 39,883 708 716 52,160 40,599 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position ~122) (173) 5 47 ~IIZl (I~ 
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THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 
Governmental Activities 
Table 3 
Information below compares revenues and expenditures for all governmental fund types for 1017-1018 and 1016-1016. 

(SOOO omitted) 
Revenues by SOIID:e: 2017-2018 2016-2017 %Cbange 

Local Tax Levy 21,344 20,923 2.01% 
Tuition Charges 13,694 13,765 -0.52% 
Interest Earned to Investments 35 6 483.33% 
Miscellaneous 461 532 -13.35% 

Total - Local Sources 35,534 35,226 0.87% 
State Sources 6,763 4,229 59.92% 
Federal Sources 311 292 6.51% 

Total Revenues 42,608 39,747 7.20% 

(SOoo omitted) 
Expenditures by Functjon: 2017-2018 2016·2017 % S;;bangR 
Current: 

Regular Instruction 10,382 9,973 4.10% 
Special education 5,744 5,675 1.22% 
Other instruction 1,157 1,155 0.17% 

Support Services and undistributed costs: 
Tuition 902 984 -8.33% 
Student and instruction related services 4,787 4,552 5.16% 
School administrative services 1,566 1,505 4.05% 
General and Business administrative services 817 786 3.94% 
Plant operations and maintenance 3,430 3,197 7.29% 
Pupil transportation 427 463 -7.78% 
Employee Benefits 11,177 8,550 30.73% 

Capital Outlay 1,081 290 272.76% 
Specials Scbools 838 693 20.92% 
Debt Service: 

Principal 880 880 0.00% 
Interest on long·teno debt 258 279 -7.53% 

Total Expenditures 43,446 38,982 11.45% 

Due 10 cbanges in surplus regulations, the board of education does nol have large amounts of cash on hand thus decreasing our ability 
to invest monies for investment income. 
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Business-type Activities 

The District's only Enterprise Fund is its Food Service operation. The basic financial statements for the mojor funds II1'II included in 
this report. Because the focus on business-type funds is a cost of service measurement, we have included these funds in Table 4, 
which demonstrates return on ending assets and return on ending net position. 

Table 4 

($000 omitted) 

TotalAsseb 
Net Position 
Change in Net Position 

Rdum on Ending Total Assets 

Rdum on Ending Net Position 

CAPlTALASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 
TableS 

Capital Assets at Year-end 
(Net or Depreciation, in thousands) 

Land 
Land Improvements 
Buildings 
MachineI)' and Equipment 
Construction-in-progress 

Subtotal 
AcculDllated Depreciation 

Totals 

Governmental 
Activities 

W 2017 

300 300 
679 679 

36,026 35,910 
4,231 4,181 

816 

42,052 41,070 
(17,674) (16,5~ 

24,378 24,474 

Food 
~ 

149 
70 
57 

38.26% 

81.43% 

Business-type 
Activites 

m 2017 

28 28 

28 28 
(23) (22) 

5 6 

~ 
m ~ 

300 300 
679 679 

36,026 35,910 
4,259 4,209 

816 

42,080 4i,098 
(17,622> {16,618) 
24,383 24,480 

The District'S 2018-2019 capital budget anticipates a spending level of$300,OOO for capital projects to be funded by the districts 
operating budget for various equipment and renovations. More detailed information about the District capital assets is presented in 
Note ill:C. to the basic financial statements. 
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DEBT 

At year-end the District had total debt of$27,148,OOO outstanding versus $11,148,000 last year - an increase of 143.5% percent- as 
shown in Table 6. 

Outstanding Debt, at year -i!nd (In thousands) 
Table 6 

Governmental 
Activities 

~ mz 
Serial Bonds 
Loans 
Capital Leases 
Te"l'orary Notes 
Authorized but not Issued 

An analysis of District Debt is presented in Note IV:B. to the basic froancial statements. 

BUDGETS 

7,775 8,655 

2,157 2,493 

17,216 
27,148 11,148 

The variances between the originally adopted budget for the year 2017-2018, and the final budget were caused by the treatment of 
eocumbrances that are added to the original budget and additional revenue. In addition, the State pension payments, which are paid by 
the State on behalf of employees are not budgeted, however they are counted as an expense in the audit 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of 
the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact the School Business Administrator, Daniel A. Borgo, Mountain Lakes School District, 
400 Boulevard, Mountain Lakes, New Jersey. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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DISTRICT - WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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exhibit A-1 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 
Statement of Net Position 

June 3D, 2018 

Governmental Business-type 
Ac!lvlllu !c!I~I!!!!1 !2!11 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,702,979.64 $ 51,027.98 $ 1,754,007.62 
Receivables, nat 663,272.02 663,272.02 
Interfund receivable 80,131 .63 80,131 .63 
Inventory 7,287.56 7,287.56 
Restrlcled as .. ts: 

Cash and cash equivalents (816,622.17) (816,622.17) 
Capital reserve account - caah 900,062.58 900,082.58 

Capital assets, net (Note IItC.): 24,3n,768.15 5,237.16 24,383,023.31 

Total Assets 2s,s27,478.22 143,864.33 28,971,162.55 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to pans Ions 4,106,737.62 4,106,737.82 

Total Daferred Outflows of Resounoas 4,108,737.82 4,106,737.62 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 40,983.25 40,983.25 
Interfund payable 80,131 .83 80,131 .63 
Payable to atate govammant 54,675.82 54,675.82 
Bond Interest payable 68,119.79 68,119.79 
Uneamed revenue 201,816.02 27,413.27 229,229.29 
Other 107,118.90 
Long-term lIablIllles other than panslons(Note IV:B.): 

Oue within one year 1,273,n5.44 1,273,n5.44 
Due beyond one year 9,120,687.81 9,120,667.61 

Aggregate net pension liability 13,293,668.00 13,293,668.00 
Total liabilities 24,217,993.21 68,398.52 24,179,270.83 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Inflows related to panslons 2,736,153.00 2,738,153.00 

Total Daferred Inflows 01 Resources 2,736,153.00 2,738,153.00 

NET POSITION 
Net Investmantln capital assets 14,445,346.76 5,237.16 14,450,583.92 
Restricted for. 

Capital projects (814,018.31) (814,018.31) 
Dab! servlca (68,119.44) (68,119.44) 
Other purposes 1,808,318.83 1,808,318.63 

Unrestrlcted (11,173,458.21) 70,050.85 (11,103,407.56) 

Total Net PoslUon S 3,980,089.83 S 75,287.81 $ 4,055,357.44 

The accompanying Nota. to Ananetal Statements ana an Integral part of this statement 
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FunctIonolPralllMlO 

Governmental activiti8l: -Regular 
SpeclaI educalion 
Other instruction 

Support servicaa: 
Tuition 
~t and instruction ratated S8IViceo 
School administrative &eMcee 
G8I18I8I..s __ eS8lViceo 

Plant_notJons and maintenance 
PupiI~ 

SpeclaIachoois 
SDA Debt Servtce Aaaesomant 
Int8t8S1 on Iong-...... debt 

Total govemmantaJ activities 

Buslnees-type activilIee: 
Food 5etv1ce 

T 0IIII businees-typo activitiee 
Total primary govemment 

EJptntM 

$ 18.673.350.33 S 
10.659.809.91 

1.997.514.07 

902.498.72 
8.357.945.15 
2,899.847.19 
1.284.884.02 
4.840.434.97 

460.155.74 
1.278.138.68 

48.298.00 
250,107.29 

51.452.782.07 

708.285.79 

708.265.79 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF IIOUNTAIN LAKES 

S .. ......,t 01 ActIvItioo 
Forlho Year _ J .... 30, 201' 

Program Revenu. 

Chorgoo lor 

imISII 

- $ 

945.681.42 

151,188.29 

1.098.847.71 

667.975.99 

667.975.99 

0p0r0iI1III 
G_taend 

Coo!dbytigpt 

5.971.536.98 
4.096,586.67 

549.655.07 

208.490.88 
2,603.368.29 

906.059.39 
298.598.57 
830.884.88 
40.554.18 

305.110.11 

!!!,921.oo 

15.907.784.00 

5.571.45 

5.571.45 
$ 52,161,047.88 $ t,784,823.70 $ 15.913,335.45 

G ...... revenuoo: 
TIlX8I: 

property taxes, lellled for general purposes 
Propo<ly _1avIed for debt _ principoI 

Fodera! and Stat. aid not _011 
Tuition (_than speciaI-) 
Invootment EomIngo 
MlsceIIanOOUl Income 
CepitaI '-- principoI canceIod 
Transfe,. 

• 

"c.pitaI 
Grontaend 

ContdbuVorw 

S 

$ 

T otat general _""" ... spoclaIltama, 8ldnIOIlinary Itamo and __ 

c:t...go In Not PoaitIon 
Net PoeItion-OeginnI ... _ted 

Nat PoeitioI ........... Min" 

The _y1I111_ to FInancIoJ S_ta ora onlntagnol port oIlh1._ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

S 

Not(~) _ ... _ 

Chang.- In Net Poeitian 

Governmental Bualneu-type 
AqUyftln AetlyftIII 

(12,701.813.35) $ $ 
(6.583.223.24) 
(1.447.659.00) 

(694.007.88) 
(5.754.578.88) 
(1.993.587.60) 

(_,285.45) 
(3.809.550.09) 

(419.601.58) 
(27.385.15) 
(48.298.00) 

(34,448,170.38) 

(34,718.35) 

(34,718.35) 
(34.448.170.38) $ (34.718.35) $ 

20.320.489.00 S $ 
872,441.71 

93.814.92 
12,748,298.30 

34,769.33 738.57 
144.470.25 
160,374.32 
(38,937.00) 38,837.00 

34,325,618.83 39,575.57 
(122,551.53) 4.857.22 

4,102.621.18 70,430.58 

3.980.089.63 S 75.287.81 $ 

ExhIblt .... 2 

Ii!III 

(12.701.813.35) 
(8.583.223.24) 
(1.447.659.00) 

(684.007.88) 
(5.754.578.88) 
(1.993.587.60) 

(_.285.45) 
(3.809.550.09) 

(419.601.58) 
(27.385.15) 
(48.298.00) 

(34,448,170.38) 

(34,718.35) 

(34,718.~ 
(34.482.888.7U 

20,320,489.00 
872,441.71 

93,1514.92 
12,748.298.30 

35.607.90 
144.470.25 
160,374.32 

34,385 194.40 
(117.684.31) 

4,173,051.75 

4.055.357.44 
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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Elchlblt 11-. 
SOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 
Batanc.S .... t 

Govomon ..... F_ 
Junl 30, 20tl 

Spldal C.pU.' o.bt T .... - R_ p",jocto -. Co," •• u&M 

flIIIlI f!IIIlI flU1lI flU1lI flU1lI! 

ASSETS 
c ....... c:IIh eqlMlentI S 1,578,493.151 • 128,485.82 S (81U22.17) • 0.35 • .88,357.47 
Rec:eIwbIeI tom oIhIr goyemmeIdt 12t1.734.73 25,623.30 182,2511.03 T __ IIbIo 

441,975.80 .... ',1175.80 
0Ih0t_ 82,025.70 7,0.12.39 1IQ,038.1)Q 
_ ............. oq....- 900,082.51 000,082.88 

T .... _ 
S 3,1071202.61 S 159.021.31 S 18'8,822. 'D S 0..35 S 21 .... 9,882.07 

LIA8IUllES AND FUND BAlANCES -. 
Inwr1tl1dl payable S 80,131.03 • • • 80,131.83 
P8yIIbIe to It8le pem." •• 54.815.12 54.875.82 
Uneamed I'WIntII 87,470.83 104,345.49 20.1,818.02 
0thIr '07.'1UKI 107."'.80 

r .... ..- 284.721.01 159.021.31 "'.742.37 

FnI Ba&Inc:eI: 
Restrlcled tor: 

R ....... Exce .. SUrpkII. 0._ for 
Sd>toquontV .... _ ge,oav.80 90,090.80 

RUINI rat exc. .. SurpfuI 2';,97U4 29.878.114 
C"*"'R .... _ 800,082.58 800,082.58 

C,,*", Prof- (1,714,080.80) (1,714,080 •• 0) Oebt_ 
0.35 035 _to: 

0"",_ .. 354,780.31 887,458.72 1~52,230.1)Q 

DtoIptId for ~ V .... - 453,071.20 4a3,071.2G u.._ 758.Sn.03 758,877.03 
r .... FtInd_ 2,822.571.52 (818,822.1D 0..35 2,000,"0.70 

T .... ~ ... Fund_ S 3.'07.212,58 • 159.021.3' I (BIB,m.tV I 0..35 

Amowde repor\ecI rot ga.",wnenfllldMflrl. fi the ~ of 
nel position (A-t) .... differwnt baclUSI: 

_ to Debt _ Fund not ~ for'" 
ecauaI of ... te,.. .. uptnH. (88, "9.70) 

ClpIlaIauetl used In govlffimental actMtlll ant not flnandll 
ruourctt and IhItef<n III not reported In ... b1dI. The COIl 
..... _" $42,082,248 ......... _oddoprod_ 
11517,674,480.84. 24,377,786.1 S 

Plftlion IIbIItIn nit 01 dlftrrtd outftoWI and InIIawI of ruource. (11,023,103.38) 

L_' .... _, IncWng _ poyIIbIo, .. not ........ 
payable n the a.mrd pef10d and lhlreforw 1111 not reported .. 
_1rt .. tunda( ... _fVlI.) 'to.!!!I4t3·~ Net_ .. ...........,_ 

I 3,0lI0,''08.13 
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Exhibit 8-2 
BOARD OF EDUCAnON 

BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKI!8 
S_ 0'-. e>tponditlno. And Changoo In Fund BoJ_ 

OOVllmmentlil Funn 
For tM V .. Ended June 30, 2011 

Spoel.1 COpIIoI Debl Toiol - -.. PnIjocIa - -... -fIIIISI fIIIISI fIaHI fIIIISI fIIIISIl 

REVeNUES 
lDc:aJ source.: 
~ltaxloYy $ 20.320.489.00 $ $ S 1,023,B28.oo $ 21.344.117.00 
Tulllon c:I1olvn 13.693,Q6'/.72 13,803,Q57.72 
Interest earned on Inveatmanll 24.338.53 24.338.53 
Inter ... earned on Cap/tll ReHNe Fundi 10.430.80 10,430.80 MIoce_ 144,470.25 318,312.05 480,782.30 

Total .. local &ouren 34,IQ3,eee.30 318,312.05 1.023,628.00 35.533,828.35 
Slate BOurce, 6,324,043.811 340,357.84 98,921.00 8,763,322.73 -- 310,1168.14 310,1168.14 

Tolli Revenue. 40,517,730.19 987,636.03 1,122,548.00 42,807,917.22 

EXPENDITURES 
Currant 
ReguIor~ 9,791 ,118.42 580.417.73 10,381,534.15 
Special education In,truc1lon 5,500,125.12 243,860.00 6,743,785.12 
Other instruction 1,161.148.40 1,157,148.40 
Su!>IK>rt .... 1eaI and _ ..... : 

Tultton 902,498.72 902,488.72 
SCUdent and Instruction related aarvlcel 4,663,557.36 133.660.30 4,787,117.65 
School_Iv. __ 1,586.857.14 1,5815,857.14 
General and bu .... administrative HrvlCH 618,878.98 818,876.98 
Plant operatlona and maintenance 3,-C3Q,281.11 3,430,261.11 
PuplIIr .. ~ 428.988.80 428,gee,BO 
Unallocated beneltll 11.177,058.24 11,177,058.24 

SpecloJ echoOio 838.318.64 836,316.64 
CapbI ou1iIy 254.764.51 816,622.17 1,081,368.68 

Debt _rvlce: 
Prfnclpal 880,000.00 660,000.00 
tnt_andolhorchorgos 257,625.00 257,625.00 
Total expenditure. 40,524,387.41 987.838.03 816,622.17 1,137,625.00 43,446,482.61 

EJu:en (Dellctency) of .......... 
over expenditures (8,637.22) (816,622.1D (15,276.oo) (838,535.391 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USI!8) 
Transfers (out) 138,637.00) 138,637.001 

Total Othe< F1noncIng _ and CUo-) j!!,637 .001 136,637.Qg) 

Nat chlnga In lund ba"ncll (48,474.22) (616,622.17) (15,278.00) (677,372.38) 
FUI'd BoJanc:e.-JuIy 1 2,86e,045.74 15,276.35 2,863,322.06 

FUI'd Bolanc~no 30 S 2,622,571.52 S S 161!,622. (0 S 0.35 S 210051049.70 

Tho occomponylng _ .. FInoncIoJ _ ... ., IntogroJ part of 1111 • .-.. 
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BOARD DF EDUCAnDN 
BOROUGH DF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

RtconcAlatIon 0' the 8tatemlnt of RlYeftUU, Explndftu,.,. 
Ind ChangH In Fund BlIaRCH of Gavernmentll Funcr. 

tolha_ntol_ 
For the V,.r End.cl JURI 30, 201' 

Talal not .hange In lund __ • _tat ""* (fram B-2) 

Amounts rlported tor govemmenlll actIvlUn In the stltement 
0/_(1.2) .. __ : 

In the .tattm.nt d actJvltfft. In.re.t on Iong.-tenn debt In the atatement of actlvitle. 1I1CC1V1d. 
__ 0/- duo. In tho __ fund • • _10 '"f'OI1Od""" duo. The dill.....,. 
In ICCNed Intan!llt I. an addition In the nteanclll,Uon. (+) 

, 257.125.00 

Capbl outIIyI.,. reponed In governmental fund, .'pPlndltLlrel. However, In the .talament of 
actlvIU •• , the COIl cI thOle .... til. ,lIocIIted over th.lr I,tlmated ulefullv .... depredation expenH. 
_ .. tho..-l by _ COflItoI outIIyo.- depo .... llo11 In tho poIIod. 

Depreciation expense 
Capitol 0UIIay> (_e 0/ ,,"pilei 

leo .. pfIncIpoI poym .... ond 
SOA Debt Service AlHument) 

AdjUitment to Cllpital AlaeIIln accordance with phyaal .PP""_ Ind d1ip08lt1OR1 

In the ,tatement at actfvltl •• , only the glln on the d1lpolll of capllll .... III. I"lporWd. wh ..... 
In the governmental fundi, the proceeds from. sale Increue ffnancill relOUtC8l. Thua. the change In 
net _ wII_""'" tho dIonge In fund boIance by tho _ 0/ tho. __ . (.) 

In the .e.tement of IdtvUf .. , certain oper.tJng expend_, '.g., COI1'I1* etect,bIenceI (vacation, and 
_ oIcI< poy) IIW ... _ by tho ................ during tho y_. In tho govemmentoI lund •• 
how.ver, eJqMIndlturn for th ... fteml.re Alported In the amount of ftnanclal ""DUlQI ullid (paid). 
When ""' ___ "'" poId _tho_II_1n tho_(-); 
when the pilei amount aceeda the eamed emount the dlf'rwence II.., addIIbn In 1M reconcaatlon (+,. 

00'0I1UeDt11 &Dda report diItric:c pcaIia. COItr'ibutica u CI:pCIIMlitura.la the SlItaDCIaI ofatMtet. 
howovw. tho COlt of pcation beuefiu amed net oC employee concriwliODI i, roported u paulon expalM. 

DI'trlct plnllon contribution. - PERS 
Coot 0/....,........., nat 0/ 

employee. conlributlon. 

Poymont 0/ 1ong·1Inn Ioblty prlncIpIf 10 en expendltulo In tho govemmental fund •• but tho ,."oyment raclu ... 
long-term IlabllUnln the .tltament of net u .. tI and II not reported In the ,tlt.ment of ac:tIvlUn. 

Oobt pclnctpol 
Capital I .... principal 
CapltollHse pclncipof canceled 

Proceed. from d.bt ISlue. are. flnancing IOUI'te In the ~mm.ntll fund •. They.re not m'enue In 
the alltem_t or ectIvltIH; llauing debt 1nc:reI ... Iong·tarm 1IabIIU., '" the statement d net ISleta. 

_.0/ Iong-IInn debt (Refunding Bondi) 
Clplllileue proceed. 

RIMtnUM In the ItItement d adMtIn which do not provide current nnancllJ reaourcel are not 
.. ported a. revenuilin the fundi. (+) 

Ch.ng, In net pOllOon of govlmm.ntlladJvItI •• 

The accompanying Note. to Flnanef,1 Statem.na , .. In Inttgl'lll p.rt of thl •• tatement. 
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(250,107.29) 

(1.078.054.60) 

983.180.08 

53<1.504.62 

(t,027,612.00) 

Exhfblt B-3 

, (071.372.38) 

7.717.71 

(114.874.52) 

tt7.33<1.50 

(481 .107.38) 

850.000.00 
185.372.23 
150.374.32 

$ (122,551.53) 



PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
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'he accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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BOARD OF EDUCAnoN 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Stalament of R.v.nu ••• Exp.n •••• and Chang .. In Fund N.t Posit/on 
Proprf.tary Fund. 

For the Y •• r Ended Jun. 30. 2018 

Operating Rov.nuII: 
Chatgaa for aaIYIcel: 

Deily sales· reimbursable programs 
Deily lales • non-reimbursable programs 
Spacial function. 

Total Operating Revenues 

Oparatlng Expon ••• : 
Cost of sales 
Sallllies 
Employee benefits 
Menagement Fee 
General supplies 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expanses 

Operating Income (loss) 

Nonoperating Rev.nu •• (Expon ••• ): 
Federal SOUrt8S: 

National school bteakfast program 
Inlarest and Investment revenue 

Total Nonoparating Revenues (Expenses) 
Income (loss) before conlrlbutlona and transfers 

Trensfersln (out) 

Change In net poaition 
Total Net Position-Beginning 

Total Net Posltion-Endlng 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements ara an Inlagral part of thle statamenL 
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$ 

$ 

ExhlbltB-6 

Bualn .... typa AcIlvIUa •• 
Entarprf •• Fund. 

Food 
S.rv!ct I!!l!!! 

841.30 $ 
620,870.88 
46,263.81 

667,975.99 

291,671.10 
284,567.80 
67,125.45 
29,588.40 
53,754.19 
1,578.85 

708,265.79 
(40,289.80) 

5,571.45 
738.57 

6,310.02 
(33,979.78) 
38,837.00 
4,857.22 

70,430.59 

75,287.81 S 

841.30 
620,870.88 
48,263.81 

667,975.99 

291,671.10 
284,567.80 
67,125.45 
29,568.40 
53,754.19 
1,578.85 

708,265.79 
(40,289.80) 

5,571.45 
738.57 

6,310.02 
(33,979.78) 
38,837.00 
4,857.22 

70,430.59 

75,287.81 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 
Paymenls to employees 
Payments for employee benefits 
Payments to suppliers 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Siale Sources 
Federal Sources 
Operating subsidies and transfers 10 other funds 

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capllal financing activities 

Net Increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 
Balances-beglnnlng of year 

ealances-end of year 

Raconcillation of operating Income (loss) 10 nat cash provldad by 
(used for) operating actiVIties: 

Operating Income (loss) 

Adjustments 10 reconcile operating Income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used for) operating activities: 

Depreciation and nel amortization 
(Increase) decrease In accounts receivable, net 
(Incnease) decnease In Inventories 
Incnease (decrease) In accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) In prepaid sales 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

exhibit B-8 

Buslnes.-type Actlvltl .. -
Enterprtae Funds 

Food 
Service I2!l!!! 

669,117.08 $ 889,117.08 
(264,567.80) (264,587.80) 
(87,125.45) (67,125.45) 

(392,357.16) !392,357.1ID 
!54,933.33) !54,933.33) 

5,571.45 5,571.45 
38,637.00 38,837.00 
44,408.45 44,408.45 

(9,788.31) (9,786.31) 
60,814.29 60,814.29 

51,027.98 $ 51,027.98 

!40,289.80) $ !4O,289.80) 

1,578.85 1,578.85 
(5,571.45) (5,571 .45) 

(166.07) (166.07) 
(17,197.40) (17,197.40) 

8,712.54 8,712.54 
!14,643.53) !14,643.53) 

!54,933.33) $ !54,933.33) 

The accompanying Notes to FinanCial Statements are an Integral part of thill statement. 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total Assets 

UABILITIES 
Payable to student groups 
Payroll deductions and withholdlngs 
I RS Section 125 Plan 

TotallJabHities 

NET POSITION 
Held In trust for unemployment 

claims and other purposes 
Reserved for scholarships 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Statement of Fiduciary Net POlIltion 
Fiduciary Funds 
June 30, 2018 

Unemployment 
Compensation 

Trust 

$ 318,131 .87 

$ 3181131.87 

$ 3181131.87 

Private 
Purpoae 

Scholarship 
Fund 

$ 94,373.50 

$ 94,373.50 

$ 94,373.50 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement 
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Exhibit B-7 

Agency 
El!.!!!l 

$ 394,227.50 

$ 394,227.50 

$ 337,979.05 
46,136.43 
10,112.02 

$ 3941227.50 



Exhibit B-8 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 
Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Position 

Fiduciary Funds 
For the Year Ended June 3D, 2018 

Private 
Unemployment Purpose 
Compensation Scholarship 

D:!!!l El!I!!! 
ADDITIONS 

Conlribullons: 
Plan member $ 26,152.93 $ 
Board Conlribullon 
Other 4,532.00 

Total ConlributJons 26,152.93 4,532.00 

Investment eamlngs: 
Inlerest 3,131.20 47.92 

Net Investment eamlngs 3,131.20 47.92 

Total Additions 29,264.13 4,579.92 

DEDUCTIONS 
Unemployment claims 31,585.36 
Scholarships awarded 13,477.08 

Total Deductions 31,585.38 13,477.08 
Change In Net Possltlon (2,301.23) (8,897.16) 

Net Poslllo~lnnlng 320,433.10 103,270.66 

Net Poslllo~nding S 318,131.87 $ 94,373.50 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements ara an Integral part of this statement 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3~. 2018 

Note I: Summary ofSiWficant Accounting Policies 

A Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District 
(District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body 
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In its accounting and financial reporting, 
the District follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more 
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the District are discussed below. 

B. Reporting Entity 

The Borough of Mountain Lakes School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to 
function as an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the fi.scaI control 
of the District A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is respoosible for the administrative control of the 
District 

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the 
GASB Codification of Govemmeptal Accounting and Fin!D!:ial Reporting Standards, is the degree of oversight 
respoosibility maintained by the District Oversight responsibility includes financial interdependency, selection of 
governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operatiOIlS and accountability for 
fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the Board exercises 
operating control. The operations of the District include one elcmentsry, one junior and one senior high schools as 
well as a school for the hearing impaired located in Mountain Lakes. There were no additional entities required to be 
included in the reporting entity under the criteria as descn'bed above, in the current fi.scaI year. Furthermore, the 
District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria. 

C. Basic Financial Statements- Government-Wide Statements 

The District's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a whole) and fund 
financial ststements (reporting the District's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements 
categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The District's general and special revenue 
activities are classified as governmental activities. The District's food service program is classified as a business-type 
activity. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are 
presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which 
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The District's net position 
are reported in three parts-invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net 
position. The District first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: Summary ofSionificant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Basic Fjnancial Statements- Government-Wide Statements 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the District's functions 
and business-type activities. The functions are also supported by general govemmeot revenues (property taxes, 
tuition, certain intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including 
depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly 
associated with the function (regular instruction, vocational programa, student and instruction related services, etc.) or 
a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) 
grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. 

The net costs (by function or business-type activity are normally covered by general revenue (property taxes, tuition, 
interest income, etc.). 

a. The District allocates indirect costs such ss on-behalf TP AF Pension Contributions, on-behalf TP AF and 
PERS and OPEB Contributions and Reimbursed TP AF Social Security Contributions. 

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Diatrict aa an entity and the change in the District's 
net position resu1tin& from the current year's activities. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements. 

D. BMic FjnAncial Statements- Fund FipAncial Statements 

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund 
is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its aasets, liabilities, reseryes, 
fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within the 
financial statements. 

The empbasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type activities 
category are summarized into a single column. GASBS No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, 
liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) 
for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial s!atements. 
The State of New Jersey Department of Education bas mandated that all New Jersey School districts must report all 
governmental funds aa major, regardless of the fund meeting the GASB definition of a major fund. However, the 
GASB criteria are applied to proprietary funds. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNJAlN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D. Basic Figancial Statementa- Fund Financial Statemcnl5 (Continued) 

The followiDg fund types are used by the District: 

Governmental Fund Types 

The focus of the governmental funda' measurement (in the fund statemenl5) is upon determination of financial 
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net 
income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the District: 

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District It is used to account for aU 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain 
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified in the 
Capital Ouday subfimd. 

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted Capital Ouday in 
this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that Genersl 
Fund resources may be used to direcdy finance capital outlays for long-lived improvemenl5 as long as the 
resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. 

Resources for budgeted capital ouday purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district 
taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or additions to 
fixed assel5 for land, existing buildings, improvementa of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or 
remodeling of buildings and the purchase ofbuilt-in equipment These resources can be transferred from and 
to Current Expense by board resolution and, excluding equipment, with County Superintendent approval. 

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State 
and Federal Government, (other than major capital projecta, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local 
appropriations that are legaUy restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Caoital Projects Fund - The Capital Projecl5 Fund is used to account for aU financial resources to be used for 
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The 
financial resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specially authorized by the voters 
as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election. 

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and 
improvement programs. 

Pennanept Fund - A permanent fund is used to account for assel5 held under the terms of a formal trust 
agreement, whereby the District is under obligation to maintain the trust principal. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policjes (Continued) 

D. Basic Finagcial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following classifications of fund balance: 

Nonspendsble - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they me either not spendable in fonn or me 
legally or cootractua11y required to be maintained intact 

Reshicted - includes amounts reshicted by external sources (creditors, laws or other governments, etc.) or by 
constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific pwposes. Committed fund balance is 
reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of Education, the Dishict's highest level of decision 
making authority. Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved by the 
Board of Education. 

Assigned - includes amounts that the Dishict intends to use for a specific purpose, but do not meet the 
definition of reshicted or committed fund balance. Under the District's policy, amounts may be assigned by 
the Business Administrator. 

Unassigned - includes amounts that bave not been assigned to other funds or reshicted, committed or assigned 
to a specific purpose within the General Fund. The District reports all amounts that meet the unrestricted 
General Fund Balance Policy descn'bed below as unassigned. 

The details of the fund balances me included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet When an expenditure is 
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unreshicted fund balance is available, the Dishict considers 
restricted funds to bave been spent first When an expenditure is uncured for which committed, assigned, or 
unassigned fund balance me available, the Dishict considers amounts to bave been spent first out of committed 
funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds as needed. 

Proprietarv Fund Type 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, changes in net position, 
financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounted principles applicable are those similar to 
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the Dishict: 

Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that me financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the Dishict is that the costs (i.e. 
expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students 00 a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user cbarges; or, where the Dishict has decided 
that the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for 
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: S!I!!!!!!!!IY of Significant ACCOunting Policies <continuedl 

D: B8l!ic Financial Statements- Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

The District's EntelPrise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund. 

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed 8l!sets used by proprietJuy funds is charged as an expense against their 
operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietJuy fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been 
provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as 
follows: 

Food Service Fund: 
Equipment 
Light Trucks and Vehicle 
Heavy Trucks and Vehicle 

Fiduciary Fuod Types 

12 Years 
4 Years 
6 Years 

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets beld in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not 
available to support District programs. The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net position and 
are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. 

The District's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund 6nsncial statements by type (Unemployment 
Compensation, private PUlJlOSC and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a 
third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot lie used to addrcas 
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incolPorated into the government-wide 
statements. 

E. Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts 
and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the 
me8l!Urement of focus applied 

1. Accrual: 

Both governmental and business-type activities in the government·wide financial statements and proprietary and 
fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
when incurred. 
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BOARD OF EPUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: SummAry ofSi!!!!ificant ACCOunting Policies (Continued) 

E. Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

2. Modified Accrual: 

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrua1; i.e., both measurable and 
available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures 
are generally recognized under the modified accrua1 basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. The 
exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is 
recognized when due. 

3. Revenues: 

Substautiallyall governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are suscepb'ble to accrual and under 
New Jersey State Statutes a municipality is required to remit to its school dishict the entire balance of taxes in the 
amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school yesr. The Dishict reconls the entire approved tax 
levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and availshle. 
Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which fiuaace either capital or current operations, are reported as DOn 

operating revenue. In respect to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities apd expenses and recipient 
recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicshle eUgibility requirements, includiog time requirements are 
met Resources transmitted before the eUgibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the proVider 
and deferred revenue by the recipient Program revenues, including tuition revenue, are reported as reductions to 
expenses in the Statement of Activities. 

4. Expenditures: 

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund Uability is incurred Inventory costs are reported in the period 
when inventory items are used, rather than in the period of purchase. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: Summary ofSirnificant Accounting Policies lContinued> 

F. BudgetsiBudgetary Control 

The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval ami, as long as the District budget is within State 
mandated CAPs, there is no public vote on the budget If the budget excecda State mandated CAPS, the votClll 
have an opportunity to approve or reject the budget at the regular election held in November. 

Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is 
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) 
level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:23-2.2(f). All 
budget amendments must be approved by School Board resolution. Appropriation of additional revenues in the 
amount of $591,968.42 and prior year encumbrances in the amount of $703,999.43 were made during the year 
ended June 30, 2018. The Board of Education approved the following material budgetary appropriation transfen 
during the school year: 

ACCOunt Name 

Regular ProaraJILI - Inllructlon 
Grades 6-8 - Salaries ofTeachers 
Grades 9-12 - Salaries of Teachers 

Regular PrograJILI- UndJstrlbuted IJutruction 
Purchased Technical Services 
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 

Auditory Impalrmenu: 
Salaries of Teachers 

Resource RoomJResource Center: 
Salaries of Teachers 

Home IJutruetlon: 
Salaries of Teachers 

Basi. SldUslRemedlal-lJutruetion 
Salaries of Teachers 

Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction 
Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabled - Within State 

Undistributed Expend. - Health Services 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 

Undistributed Expend. - Speech, OT,PT & Related Services 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Undist Expend. - Other Supp. Servo Studenu - Extra Servo 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 

Undist. Expend. - Edu. Media ServJSch. Library 
Salaries of Technology Coordinators 

Undist. Expend. - Supp. Servo - Genera! Admin. 
Legal Services 

Undlst. Expend. - Allowable Ms1nt. For School FsciUtie. 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 
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Amount 

$(48,721.45) 
109,819.58 

120,297.50 
(86,033.35) 

130,347.19 

(72,459.90) 

81,800.85 

(48,899.75) 

(207,974.63) 

107,215.00 

(122,224.95) 

108,988.36 

(60,242.39) 

54,238.65 

192,882.28 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

F. BudgetsIBudgetary Control (Contjnued) 

Undlst Expend. - Olb. Oper. & Malnl. of Plant 
Salaries 
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 
Insurance 

Undlsl. Expend. - Student Transportadon Servo 
Contracted Serv. (OthertbanBet. Home sod School) - Vendors 
Contrscted Serv (Special Education Stud) -loint Agreements 

UNALLOCATED BENEFITS 
Workmen's Compensation 
Health Benefits 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Equipment 
Undistributed Expenditures: 

Undistributed ExpeodilurCll - Opemtion of Plant ServiCCll 
FacWdes AcquiSition and Construction Services 

Construction ServiCCll 
Lease Purchase Agreements - Principal 

Olber Spec:1aI Schools - Instruction 
Salaries ofTeschers 

Olber Spec:lsl Schools - Support Services 
Supplies and Materials 

(46,423.20) 
273,496.65 
(49,364.25) 

42,933.99 
(59,284.00) 

(86,899.76) 
(345,805.94) 

49,647.45 

(99,556.05) 
49,908.60 

220,198.62 

70,000.00 

Formal budgetary integmtion into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the 
year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and 
genera1ly accepted accounting principles with the exception of legally mandated revenue recognition of the one or 
more lune state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below. 
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integmtion in the governmental 
fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiacal year end 

Tbe accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the gmnt accounting budgetary basis. The 
grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the gmnt accounting budgetary basis recognizes 
encumbrances as expenditures sod also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not 
Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation ofGAAP basis financial reports. 

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are reflected in the 
balance sheet as unearned revenues at fiscal year end 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: Summary of Sjgnificant ACCOunting Policies (Cootinued) 

F. BudgetslBudgetary CODtrol (Continued) 

The reconciliatioD of the general and special revenue funds from the budgetary basis of accounting to the GAAP 
basis of accounting is as foUows. 

SourcesiinOow9 of resources 
Aotual amounts (budgetary basi.) "revenue" 

from the budg.1IIIy compari90n .chedule 
Difference· budget to OAAP: 

Th. last two State aid payments ore recognized as revenue for budgetary 
purpo .... and diff .... from GAAP which does not recognize this 
revenue until the subsequent y .... when the Stat. recoanizcs 
the related expense in accordance with GASS 33. 

Grant accounting budgetary basi. diff ... from GAAP in that 
encumbrances ore recognized as expenditures, and the related 
revenu.i. recognized. 

Total revenues as reported on the stalanent of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in lUnd balances· governmental lUnd!. 

Uses/outflows of rosoun:es 
Aotual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the 

budgetary comparison schedui. 
Differences· budget to GAAP 

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but 
not received ore reported in the yesr the order i. placed for 
budgetary purpo.es, but in the y .... the supplies ore received 
for financial reporting purpo .... 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in lUnd balances· governmental lUnd! 
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Genenll 
Fund 

$ 40,514,947.19 

2,783.00 

$ 40 517 73012 

$ 40,524,367.41 

$ 40 524 36741 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

$ 950,943.56 

16,694.47 

$ 967 638 93 

$ 950,943.56 

16,69447 

$ 267 638 03 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 20lS 

Note I: S!IIIII!!8!'\f of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

O. Assets. Liabilities and Fund Equity 

1. Deposits and Invesbnents 

Deposits are cuh and cash equivalents including petty cash, change funds, cuh in banks and all highly liquid 
invesbnents with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchll!le and are stated at cost plus accrued 
interesl Other than Certificates of Deposit, deposits with maturities of greater than three months are consideted 
to be Invesbnents. U.S. Treasury and agency obligatioos and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or 
less when purchll!led are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. 

New Jersey school districts are limited u to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they 
may invest in. New Jersey statute ISA:20-37 provides a list ofpenoissible invesbnents thst may be purchued 
by New Jersey school districts. 

2. Short - term Interfund ReceivabJes/Payables 

Short - term interfund receivableslpayables represents amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or 
services rendered toIfrom a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year. 

3. Inventories 

Inventories, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise fund are recorded as 
expenditure during the year of purchll!le. 

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the fint-in-first-<lut (FIFO) 
method. 

4. Capital Assets 

Capital assets purchued or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at historical cost or 
estimated historical cosl Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received. 
Additioos, improvements and other capital outlaya that significantly extend the useful life of an uset are 
capitslized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on the 
following assets is provided on the straight - line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Land Improvements 
Other Iofrastructure 

20-50 years 
5-10 years 

10-20 years 
10-50 years 

Land and Coostruction in Progress are not depreciated. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note 1: SummAry ofSjgnificant Accounting Policjes (Continued) 

G. Assets. Ljabilities and Fund Equity (Continued) 

4. Capital Assets (Continued) 

GASB No. 34 requires the District to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective with the 
beginning of the current year. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been 
reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is subject to an extended 
implementation period and is first effective for fiscal years ending in 2006. 

s. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and 
sabbatica1leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and 
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, is 
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, 
or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are 
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place. 

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources arc reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund that will 
pay for the compensated absences. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in subsequent 
fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the 
fund and govemmcnt- wide presentations. (Sec Note XU) 

6. Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash which has been received but not yet earned See 
Note I{F) regarding the special revenue fund. 

7. Long -term Obligations 

Long - term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources have been 
accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For other long - term 
obligations, only that portion expected to be finsnced from expendable available financial resources is reported 
as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The noncurrent portion (the amount estimated to be used in 
subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funda is maintained separstely and represents a reconciling item 
between the fund and government- wide presentations. 

8. Fund Equity 

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds from other funds. 
Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated for a 
specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans for future use of financial resources. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: Summary of Significant ACCOunting Policies (Continued) 

G. Assets. Uabjlities and Fund Eouity (Continued) 

9. Net Position 

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the District-wide financial statements. 
Net invesbDent in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balance of any long-term debt used 10 build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is reported 
as restricted in the District-wide financial statements when there arc limitations imposed on their use through 
external restrictions imposed by creditors, granlors, or laws or regulations of other governments. 

10. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with gcncrally accepted accounting principles requires 
management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reports, amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimatcs. 

11 Allocation of Costs 

In the government-wide ststement of activities, the District bas allocated unalIocsted benefits 10 various 
programs based on the original budgetary expenditures by program. 

H. Recent Accounting PronoUQCements Not Yet Effective 

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 87 "Leascs". This 
statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15,2019, could have significant effects on 
the entity's financial reporting and the provisions of !his statement could require significant modifications 10 
disclosure requirements. 
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• u C UI hUili 1000 IDal 
BOROUQH OF MQllNTAIH LAKES 

HDIf-.Ci m a6.S~ EIHA~6II SIATI!MENTS 
)'EABENPEDRlNE19 20.1 

Note D' RrrqpcjHatign gfGqyemmenl Wide IQd fund EhwJcial Statemcob 

ExpIanItion of Oi.fti:renccs bcIwcen Govanmcntal Funds Balance Sheet and Ibe SlIIemcnt orNet Position 

.,.otII tund bIIInccI" oettle Districts .aovcmmentallbnds In B-1 dlffcn ftom "net position" of IOvemmentli activities 
reponed In the ,1II .. cnt or net posidon In A·I. This dil1m:nce primorily ........ Iiom the """. _ CCOI1OI1II< r_ 
of Ihe JtUmleftt or pet posJtfon versus the cumnJ financial resources foaq of the sovemmental ftmd balance sheet!. 

BIlIu£G SheetJSllIGmml g[HcI i!sUiOgD 
S_ 

Total Lona .. tcm1 oeNet 
OOvcmmcntal Assds Ra:lossiflclllons PvsItIoo 

ADm tliDds Utbjllties (J) and mjmhgtjoM ~ 

Cult .... _ equIvoJcnts S 886,357.47 S S SI6,622.17 S 1,702,919.64 
R.cccivableJ, net 663,272.02 663,272.02 
_ 110m 0tI1er00vernm"", IS2,25S.03 (l52,25S.03) 
Tuition Receivable 441,975.90 (441,975.90) 0lI0<< __ 

69,038.09 (69,03S.09) 
Restricted 1lI_: 

Cult 1IId ..... cquivolcnts (SI6,622.17) (816,622.17) 
Capital ReseMI Account·_ 9OO,062.5S 900,062.58 

CapItol "-ltd 24,377,786." 24.377.786.15 

T .... Auets 2.449.692.07 24,377.786.15 26.827.478.22 
I&ferred QurfIo"" g(Bma:m 

Deterred oudlOWI related 10 pmsions 4.106.737.62 4.106.737.62 
T .... DcfamI Oudlo", ofJlcso ..... 4.106.737.62 4.106.737.62 

T .... Auets IIId 0._ 0ut00ws ofRaoun:a S 2.449.692.07 S 28.484.S2J.77 S S 30.934~".84 

LiIIIIIiJkl 

-Payoble S 80,131.63 S S S SO,131.63 
Payable to Stale Oavcmmcnl 54,675.82 54.61'.82 
Bood -... PIytbIc 86,119.79 S6,1I9.79 
Unearned Jtcvenuc 20I,BI6.02 201,116.02 
0tI1er 107,118.90 107,IIB.90 
Noocumnt Liabilities 23.226.127.39 462.003.66 23.68!,1lI.05 

TotoIlJabiIIties 443.742.37 23~6.127.39 548.123.45 24~17.993.21 

Il5:rmlll 100m g!BumlUiu 
DeI'cmd ioftow> _ to petUlooo 2.736.153.00 2.736.1SJ.00 

Total De:fared lnDows ofRe:sourteS 2.736.153.00 2.m.m.00 

TolII Lilbflitict and Oefemd lnOows ofRe3ourccs 443.742.37 25.96~8O.39 548.123.45 26.954.146.21 

ftmd BaIanmlNe' pmitiop 
Net Pmjtioo 

Net fnvestment in capitalasscu 14,445,346.76 14,445,346.76 
Restricted lOr: 

Capital projects (SI4,OI8.31) (814,OIB.31) 
Debt Service 0.35 (86,119.79) (86,119.44) 
Other pwposes 1,608,3IB.83 1,608,318.83 

Unratri, .... 1~1I.648.81 !11.923.103.31) !462.oo3.66) !1I.173.451.21) 
Total FWId Balance.sINct Position 2.00'.949.70 2.522,243.38 !548.123.45) 3.980.069.63 

Total Uabilitid, Deferred InlIoWi orRcsoW'CC:II .... F .... __ 
S 2.449.692.07 S 25.748,]70.77 S S 30.934,215.84 
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BOROUGH OF MQUNIAIN LAKES 

tfOIES TO BASIC fINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
fEAR ENQEP ltrtre 30 2011 

Note Q' 8r&qtpljetign pfgpymmcpt Wide and fuM fjPllMjlal SlIIemcgt:I fOmtjnygdl 

Explanation o(Olft'cm1CCS between Oovcmmcnlll Furuts Balance Sheet and the Statement o(Ncc Posicion (Continued) 

I. When Capllll_ (luId, buikllnp, equipment) ""' ... 10 be ..... 1. governmenlll ""viti .. are pwdwcd or 
COI'ISb'Udcd. the cost o(tbose web are reported u expenditures in aovcmmcnllll ftpb, Hc:Iwcver, the statement 
oCnd position incJuIiIes tboM capMllSJd! amorta the assets orlha District IS I who&e. 

s 

s 

Lana: • tcnn liabilities applicable ro the Districts 8overnmmtalll:tividcs an: not due and payable In the current period 
and ICCOrdina:Jy are not RpOrtcd u ftlnd liabilities. AllllabllititJ. both currenllnd lon8· tc:nn are reported in the 
statement of net positloa. 

AdJ_1O Debl_ FWId ... posiIIoa lOr .... 
ICCrUII of mteresc expeDJC. 

Net PERS Pension LWHlity 
Defened _ reIoIed 10 peasioos 
Deferred InIIows _10 pensions 

Seriol Bonds 
Capital Lwes 
Compensated Absences 

Sl 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

42,0$1,246.99 
(17.674.4a).1141 
24,377.786.15 

13.293,688.00 
(4,106,737.62) 
2~153.00 

11,923,103.31 

7,715,000.00 
2,157,439.39 

462,003.66 

10)94,443.0' 

,161119.19) 



Nqc g. 'emI""""pC £krcs:np8 WId; lid fly! flpw;W 5 (OW,,,,,, 

NQ1J!.1muSCfSNANClN st"mPNn 
lUImmrpn!NB19 MI. 

11III"nec .... tI iliad ....... b ~ funk II 801!1ft'a1 fnlDlba "c:tr1aa18 ia Del pcIIbJaI" Jbr poen!IICIltd 
JCtI~ RpIUd Ia the __ clldbltlcs III A-l. 11e cIffereaaI art. prtmIrtI, h till .. -1aa00DMlltlk tal 
clthD ...... cllCIhtdalCdll"~a..:wftD!l'Cltlfoaltct .. poa-.& t.iL 'nIodid fII_ 
IlIIimIzIlliIIdrMId bdaw. 

51111i111a1 IIlBmaa EI--- IlIIea_11 fllill lllira/3ll=- ",&iJbilirl 

T"" ..... - """" -- "- ..... 
'nmn wlC!!g 5sma f>OIl e.-m ~ 
"""Tul"7 S 11,344,117.00 S 

"""'CIwpo 11,d91.H1.1l 
'*nII1!anaI0II. ~ )4,161,31 - .... 7I1lO S ... _ 

6,161,322.73 

...... - 1!~96I·14 
ToW 4~60'7,'t7.n S ! -c..m.o 
.... I.-.c:sIaI 1Q,3II.114.15 • • "'I.4Cr7.n S,..,.,_ '-141.715.11 n,....., -- 1.ln.I.t6.40 ....,. .. 

Suppns.nlca ud~caII: 

"" ... _n 
5~ m:ll8llNc::tlcllrdaIcd.-W:a 4,"'.117.65 ,-",JJl """'_ ...... 1.H!.U7.14 ..... UI o.nt ____ ~.mc. 

116,676.96 ......... 
l'fUlopnllDnlllll ...... ).43CU11.1I 15],116.51 

...... -- ."-"' .. 21.13&.24 
U .............. Il. Jn.D5l24 _ ..... 

I3I.lIlM 
CIIpItalOlc1l)' 1.c-IJI6." "",1_ --- ....... ., ...... 
"'" 94,114.21 

OIIB RIIUd:aa t.1D'Chaap1lII Net AlIcIa: 
Net IrIIIIfIn IO(tom) ilia fwIII 01."".(0) 
CIpilII .. prindf:W CIIICIIa:t 

"'" QY!1:!:IJ 
Neta..,eItl"IMY_ !.n.m.m I 1,111.71 • 
2. Ia 1hDItII.eaI of IdIWIa, lIltral oa Iq ___ debt Ia the ttI/4III:II clldhtlkl IIICCnKd, repnb fII .... em Ia ... .".-.I 
tIIdI, blkralil rqaIId ....... n.1CI:nIId lIIIrm is u IIIIIIkJIIi .. , r I (" 

3. CIplIaI CiUllaI' uerqDUldlllJCMnIIICIIII a.a:II .. aptldlWa.. 1fowmr. 1a 118111lea1c!1 flltadi~.mcell allIae .... .. 
II10cWd cmr IIdr atIIDIItd...cAd U_ II ~ a~ 1NJ II thslllUl# 1IbIch capital OWIaJ' aceedr:d dqn:IIdO!I.la ... pftd. 

1. II die ~ fIIlCIhftIa,. cIfIIy ths pia !XI tilt cIIpCIII cI capttal weu II rqJIWd, MIcn:u Ia 1M ~ fIIIIII, tie pnXIIldI 
lIDIIIallle ua-ftaudaI raGItCtiI. 1IuI, W dIqe Ia lid ... IIr1II cItIW &om'" c:llqlla !\!ad bIIua b)' dill aa flltIII 
.... re.md.(.) 

4. laths ~ fIIaClhtdel, anaIoopenlial a:a-. L" ~abIaI:a('I'ICIIka) .. mlUllralb7"'1UDIIU mrmd 
cUI,.1he year. lD thD ~ fwIII, ~, apadlura Itr hie Ilea .. fICICItCd 11""1IIIIIIII of ftauda! raourceI uaaS 
(pIId). WIaa Wi aned __ e:uadlths paid IIIIlIUl, till cI/fertII:D II rdldlcllia till nc:xdIadO!I. (t); .... till pdd IIIIDWII 
a:c:eedI cba __ ... dII~ bu Ilil*lDtDlfID ~(.). 

IlrMnIaaaJ I\sDdI rcpan ddrb pa.a ~ .. apcall\nl.1a U.1IaleDIeal fII acthkeL ~. U. cell of pendca IaI&I 
amaI. nec.o/~lXIII'ItI!&k:IIllrcpancd" pt:DIiaaa~ 

h,.a of Iort-ItI'M IIabiIIry pUdpalll .. a:padt\n lila. fOI'GWIIIE'II ftuIdI. bill ... PI)'IIaI ~ Iq. aen.1IabIII1IcI1a"'1IIlIIIIDIII 0/ 

Del wctIlIII II'" rep:rted la IN~ d KtlYI .... 

4. Proc:adI D:oIn debt tuaa lie alllllllClna JOUrCe 111 the pcna!IIlIllwlll. Thr11t1111lt mtIUIl,. die IWeIDaI d ICIlYltkl, ~ 
debt ma.a IOI!t • term 1iIIIIIIIkI1I dlllIUeaIaII ct., ..... 
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s 

• 

........ - • I II 
rprpttknrAl ", fI' .... 1t!! m 

S 

8.610,170.00 

s UI~17a.OO 

lOU6U] • 1JH.741.11 
139.05.11 4."'''14.11 
",-"" ... 152,Ol1.4] 

17S,74UI ' .......... " ....... 1,2]9-"'-" 
11.1n40 405,797.20 

(1IJ14.22) 1,144,191.$7 "U, I ..... " 
(lI,117,D5U4) 

l2.l1U1 4n,44l.4l 
(49,J01.6O) 

(IlII.II00.00) 

IISU".7)l apu,nu. 

• PUO!.!! • 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

-.. -JaIl 

11"...,111.00 
1J.69l.951.71 

14.16U1 
460.11l.lO 

15314,OH.73 
11~96I.14 

11.111,691.22 

ILm.l1Q.3l 
1Q.659.109.'1 
1J9'1.114.07 _n 
1J$1$4115 
1,.199,6fr.19 
IJI4,II4.1D 
4,6tQ,434.91 
_1".14 

1.171.11&.6. ...,.... 

(J1,137.(0) 
1!ll14.31 
111,,117.31 
"MUll 

' .111.11 

(I ,07I.Q54.6O) 
91l,1l0.~ 

!'!U7:Ull 

II1JlUO 

(lRZ1,6I2.«J) 

IlII.II00.'' 
Iwnn 
1$114.12 
)QM71.tH 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNfAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Note ill: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues 

A, Deposits and Investments 

Deposits 

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in institutions located in New Jersey which are insured 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), the Savings Association Insurance Fund, or by any 
other agencies of the United Stales that insure deposits or the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund. 

N,J,S,A, 17:9-41 et Seq, establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units, The 
statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds 
are secured in accordance with the Govemmental Unit Deposit Protection Act Public depositories include 
Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which 
are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to 
five percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental 
Units, If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collatera1 of all other public 
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units, 

At June 30, 2018 the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's cash and cash equivalent's amounted to 
53,413,122.17, Of this amount, 5250,000,00 was covered by federal depository insurance (F,D.I,C.) and 
53,163,122.17 was covered bya collatera1pool maintained by the banks as required byGUDPA. 

At June 30, 2018 the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's had no participation in the State of New 
Jersey Cash Management Fund. 

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, reqnires the disclosure of baole deposits 
that are subject to custodial credit risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of 
the failure of a depository financial institution, the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District will not be 
able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that may be in the possession of an 
outside party. 

As of June 30, 2018, none of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's cash and cash eqnivalents 
was exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note ill: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Assets and Revenues (Continued) 

A. Deposits and InvesbPents (Continued) 

Invesbncnts 

New Jellley statutes (NJ.S.A. 18A:20-37) permit the Borough of Mountain Lakes s<:hool District to pun:hase 
the following types of securities: 

a. When authorized by resolution adopted by a majority vote of aU its memben the board of education of 
any school district may use moneys which may be in band for the pun:hase of the following types of securities 
which, if suitable for registry, may be registered in the name of the school district; 

(I) Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United 
States of America; 

(2) Government money market mutual funds; 
(3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an 

act of Congress, wbich security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of pun:hase, 
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other external factor; 

(4) Bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligatiolll of Jocal unit or units 
within which the school district is located; 

(5) Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of 
pun:hase, approved by the Division of Investment of the Department of the Treaswy for investnlent by school 
district; 

(6) Local government investment pools: 
(7) Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuanllo section I of 

P.L. 1977, c.281 (C.52:18A-90A) or 
(8) Agreements for the repun:hase of fu1Iy collateralized securities, if: 

(a) the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant 10 paragraphs (I) and (3) of this 
subsection a; 

(b) the cuslody of collateral is transferred to a third party; 
(c) the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days; 
(d) the underlying securities are pun:hased through a public depository as defined in section I of 

P.L. 1970, c.236 (C.17:9-41) and for which a masler repurchase agreement providing for the custody and 
security of collateral is executed. 

The Borough of Mountain Lakes School District had no investments as described in Notel:G. 1 at June 30, 
2018. 

B. Inlerfimd Receivables and Pavables 

As of June 30, 2018 inlerfund receivables and paysbles resulting from various interfund transactions were as 
follows: 

General Fund 
Enterprise Fund 
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Due from 

Other Funds 

S 80,131.63 

Due to 

Other Funds 

$ 80,131.63 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUOH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAl. STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2018 

Note m: Detaikd Qisclmun; Ra,rdio, :A:,£" and Reyenue:s lConUnugll 

C. Capilli Au", 

Capital ISset activity (or the yearcnded June 3D, 2018 was as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
ClpilalassclS nol beinS depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in Progras 

Total c.pilal ...... DOt beinB depreciated 

lAnd ImprovemealS 
Baildinp ond ImpromnenlS 
Machinery an=mcnt 

Total .. t h' . C05t 

Las accumulated depreciation for: 
Land ImprovemeDts 
Buildings ODd Improvements 
Machinery ODd Equipment 

Total acc:umu!ated dcp=iation 
Net capitalassclS being depreciated 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 

Business .. type activities: 
Equipment 
Less acc:umuw.d depm:iation 

Busincss .. type activities capital assets, net 

$ 

$ 

$ 

S 

Beginning 
~ 

300,000.00 

300,000.00 

678,427.40 
35,909,537.38 
4,181,102.13 

40,769,066.91 

(719,575.29) 
(10,547,458.21) 
(5,329,372.74) 
(16~96,406.24) 

24,172,660.67 

24,472,660.67 

28,469.30 
(21,653.29) 

6,816.01 

(1) Depreciation expense was charged 10 govemmental functions IS follows: 
InstrUction 
Special Education 
Other Instruction (Athletic) 
Student ond Instruction R.l<tcd Services 
School Administrative Services 
General and Business Administrativo Services 
Plant Opcratiocu ond Maintenance 
Pupil TranspcrlStion 
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$ 
816,622.17 
116,622.17 

116,910.46 
49,647.45 

166,557.91 

(30,305.65) 
(660,337.69) 
p87,411.26) 

(1,078,054.60) (I) 
(911,496.69) 

$ (94,874.52) 

$ 
(1,578.15) 

$ (1,578.85) 

$ 591,407.57 
179,054.87 
48,036.64 
8,5".00 

34,697.31 
40,658.46 

153,186.51 
21,738.24 

S 1,078,054.60 

Adjustment! 

$ S 

$ S 

$ $ 

$ S 

EndinS 
l!Il!Jg 

300,000.00 
816,622.17 

I ,116,622.17 

671,427.40 
36,026,447.84 
4,230,749.58 

40,935,624.12 

(749,880.94) 
(11,207,795.90) 
!5,716,784.oo) 

! 17,674,460.84) 
23,261,163.91 

24,377,786.15 

21,469.30 
(23~2.14) 

5,237.16 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STAIEMENIS 
YEAR EN[)E[) Jt1NE 30 2018 

Note IV: Qetajled QiSI!llJR!l ReMin, Liabjljri03 and ExpmIMlExQ!!!Ddjhm 

A. Opmtjp, J.om 

The District hu commibDcnII to lease copying and computer equipmcm and mailins systems under opcnting leases tOlalias 5391,015.80 wtUch expire in 2022. 
TOIII operatiDg lease payments made during the year ended June 30, 2018 were 5124.403.16. Future minimum lease payments arc as foUows: 

JuneJO, 2019 
June 30, 2020 
) ... 30,2021 
) ... 30,2022 

TOIIl future miDimum lease payments 

B. Log, - Imn LjtbjUriq 

LooI- Term liability activity for tho year ended June 30, 2018 wu as follows: 

Govemmental activitica: 
Long- Term debt 

Serial Bands 

T"01 debt payable 
Other liabilities: 

Compensated. absences 
Capilli I ..... 

TOIIlotherliahWd .. 
GomnmentaJ activities 

Ions - term liabilities 

(1) Paid by debt scnicc timd 
(2) Paid by seneral fund 

s 

S 

B,6",ooo.00 S 
B,655,ooo.OO 

579)42.16 
2,493,IB'.94 
3,072,528.10 

It121J28.10 S 

56 

S 

S 

s 

(37,2B1.00) 
(150J74.32) 
(1B7,655.32) 

(187,655.32) S 

AmIHmI 

79,403.16 
79,403.16 
79,403.16 
42,494.'9 

2801'04.0' 

(BBO,OOO.OO) s 
(880,000.00) (1) 

(BO,057.'O) 
(18'J72.23) 
(265,429.73) (2) 

(1,14',429.73) S 

7,775,000.00 S 
7,775,000.00 

462,003.66 
2,1'7,439.39 
2,619,443.0' 

10,394,443.0' S 

-Duo Within 
llDLXoIl 

915,000.00 
915,000.00 

40,000.00 
31B,775.44 

3'B,775.44 

1.l73,775.44 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note IV: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Liabilities and EXDe!!l!eslExpendi!ureS (Continued) 

B. Long - Term Liabilities (Continued) 

I. Bonda Payable 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voler!l of the municipality through referendums. All 
bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are 
general obligation bonds. 

Serial Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2018 consisted of the following: 

Description 

Refunding - 03/19/12 
Refunding - 10/21/15 

Interest ~ 
Rate Date 

Multiple 9/15 
Multiple 1/15 

Maturity 
Date 
2029 
2023 

Amount 
Issued 

$7,600.000.00 
2,975,000.00 

Principal and interest due on serial bonda outstanding is as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 

Principal 

$915,000.00 
915,000.00 
955,000.00 
965,000.00 
985,000.00 
500,000.00 
510,000.00 
500,000.00 
515,000.00 
505,000.00 
510.000.00 

$7,775,000 00 

57 

Interest 

$233,125.00 
210,878.50 
184,137.50 
152,856.25 
114,587.50 
74,862.50 
63,181.25 
50,875.00 
36,900.00 
21,600.00 
7,012.50 

$ 1,149 925,QO 

amount 
Outstanding 

$ 5,590,000.00 
2,185,000·00 

$7 775 QQQ,OO 

MIl 
$1,148,125.00 

1,125,787.50 
1,139,137.50 
1,1l7,856.25 
1,099,587.50 

574,862.50 
573,181.25 
550,875.00 
551,900.00 
526,600.00 
517,012.50 

$8 924 925,00 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note IV:Detailed Disclosure Regarding Liabilities and Expepses!Experu!itures (Continued) 

C. Long Tenn Liabjlilies !Continued) 

2. TemporarvNotes 

There were no Temponuy Noles outstanding as of June 30,2018. 

3. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued 

There were no authorized but not issued bonds as of June 30, 2018. 

4. Capita! Leases Payable 

The District is leasing energy conservation measures (ESIP) and technology equipment totaling 
$2,799,543.00 under capital leases. All capital leases are for terms oftive to seven years. The following is. 
schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, and the present value of the net 
minimum lease payments at June 30, 20\8. 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less: Amount representing interest 

Present value of net minimum Lease payments 

58 

$ 

$ 

$ 

amount 

369,328.34 
170,347.34 
175,178.02 
155,685.05 
160,376.09 
165,179.14 
170,098.63 
175,138.89 
180,298.38 
185,583.49 
190,998.66 
196,542.34 
193,720.41 

2,488,474.78 
33\.035.39 

2,157,439.39 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note V: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Fund Equity 

D. Calculation of Excess SwpllIS 

In accordance with N.1.S.A. 18A:7F-7, aa amended by P.L.2004, C7.73 (81701), the designation for ReseIVed 
Fund Ba!ance-Excess Swplus is a required calculation pursuant In the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational 
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve Genera! 
Fund halance at fiscal year of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund 
balance in their subsequent year's budget The excess fund balance at June 30, 2018 is $356,079.74. The 
reselVed fund ba!ance of $96,099.80 will be appropriated in the fisca! year 2018 -2019 and $259,979.94 will be 
appropriated in the fiscal year 2019-2020. 

E. Capita! ReseIVe Account 

During fiscal year 1992-1993 the Board paased a resolution for the establishment of a capital reserve account 
The 1992-1993 certified budget included an increase in the capital rese1Ve account of $60,000.00 comprised oCa 
Board approved transfer from exceas unreserved fund ba!ance for the accumulation of funds for use as capita! 
outlay expenditures in subsequent fisca! years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the genera! fund and 
its activity is included in the general fund annual budget 

Funds placed in the capital resetve account are restricted to capita! projects in the district's approved Long Range 
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in 
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by 
board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpeoded !ine-item appropriation amounts, or 
both. A district may also appropriate additiooal amounts when the express approval of the voters bas been 
obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections 
authorized pursuant to N.J.8.A 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.I(g), the balance in the account cannot 
at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP. 
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Note V: Detailed Disclosure Regarding Fund Equity <Coptinued) 

B, Cspital Reserve Account (Continued) 

A summary oflbe account's traDsactions is 85 follows: 

1992-1993 Budget (descnbed above) $ 60,000,00 
1998-1999 Budget (Unreserved fund Balance) 600,000,00 
1998-1999 Invesbnent Income 24,000,00 
1999-2000 Expenditures (400,000,00) 
1999-2000 Invesbnent Income 15,620,00 
2000-2001 Expenditures (250,000,00) 
2000-2001 Fund Balance Transferred 100,00 
2000-2001 Invesbnent Income 2,000,00 
2001-2002 Budget (Tax Levy) 156,180,00 
2001-2002 Invesbnent Income 4,300,00 
2002-2003 Invesbnent Income 3,000,00 
2002-2003 Expenditures (20,210,00) 
2003-2004 Invesbnent Income 2,346,78 
2003-2004 Expenditures (38,538,00) 
2004-2005 Invesbnent Income 13,008,00 
2004-2005 Expenditures (100,000,00) 
2005-2006 Expenditures (35,157,53) 
2005-2006 Invesbnent Income 1,608,26 
2006-2007 Invesbnent Income 1,912,88 
2007-2008 Invesbnent Income 602,56 
2007-2008 Budget (Unreserved Fund Balance) 350,000,00 
2008-2009 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 525,000,00 
2008-2009 Invesbnent Income 252,95 
2009-2010 Expenditures (225,000,00) 
2010-2011 Resolution (Unreserved fund Balance) 850,000,00 
2010-2011 Expenditures (477,231.47) 
2011-2012 Invesbnent Income 235,81 
2012-2013 Transferred from Capital Projects Fund 136,171.25 
2012-2013 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 64,000,00 
2012-2013 Expenditures (427,860,001 
2013-2014 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 150,000,00 
2013-2014 Expenditures (427,000,00) 
2014-2015 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 200,000,00 
2014-2015 Invesbnent Income 3,912,01 
2014-2015 Expenditures (399,950,00) 
2015-2016 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 206,048,60 
2015-2016 Expenditures (250,000,00) 
2016-2017 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 460,000,00 
2016-2017 Invesbnent Income 279,68 
2016-2017 Expenditures (200,000,00) 
2017-2018 Resolution (Unreserved Fund Balance) 510,000,00 
2017-2018 Invesbnent Income 10,430,80 
2017-2018 Expenditures (200,000,00) 

Balance June 30, 2018 ~2gg,g~2.~B 
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Note V: Detailed Djsclosure Regarding Fund Equity (Continued) 

B. Capita! Reserve Account (CoPtinued) 

The Iune 30, 2018 LRFP balance of local support costs of uocompleted capital projects at Iune 30, 2017 is 
$1,000,000.00. The withdrawals from the capital reserve were for use in a DOE approved facilities projcc~ 
consistent with the district's Long Range Facilities Plan. 

Note VI: Pension Plans 

Description of Svstems 

SubstantiaUy aU of the Board's employees participate in one of the following conlnDutory defined benefit public 
employee retirement systems which have been establisbed by State statute: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 
(TP AF) or the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program 
(DCRP). These systems are sponsored and administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The 
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund retirement system is considered a cost sharing plan with special funding 
situations as under current statute, aU employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the 
Board and the system's other related non-contributing employers. The PERS is considered a cost sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit plan. The DCRP is considered a cost sharing multiple-employer defined contribution plan. 

The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established in January 1955, under the provisions ofN.I.SA 
43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantiaUy aU full time employees of the State 
or any county, municipality, school district or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State­
administered retirement system. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.I.S.A. 43: 15A. PERS provides retirement, death and disability 
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service 
or under the disability provisions ofPERS. 

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS: 

Tier Definition 
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July I, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July I, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after Novemher 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 20 I 0 
4 Members who were eligtDlc to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011 
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after Iunc 28, 20 II 

Service retirement benefits of 1/55111 of final average salary for each yesr of service credit is available to tier I and 2 
members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1160110 of 
final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 
members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits arc available to tier I and 2 members before reaching age 
60, tier 3 and 4 members hefore age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of 
service credit before age 65. Bcoefits arc reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires 
prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement henefits in accordance with their respective tier. 
Tier I members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. 
Deferred retirement is available to memhers who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the 
service retirement age for the respective tier. 
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Note VI: Pension Plans <Continued> 

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (l'PAF) was established in 1955, under the provisions ofN.J.S.A, 18:66, to 
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full-time public school employees in the 
State. Membership is mandstory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension benefits 
and 25 for post-retirement bealth care coverage. 

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death and disability 
benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefita, which vest after 25 years of service 
or under the disability provisions ofTPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contnbutions and, after 
three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of 
death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts. 

The foUowing represents the membership tiers forTPAF: 

Tier Definition 
I Members who were eoroUed prior to July I, 2007 
2 Members who were eligible to enroU on or after July I, 2007 and prior to November 2,2008 
3 Members who were eligible to enroU on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 20 I 0 
4 Members who were eligible to enroU on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011 
5 Members who were eligible to eoroU on or after June 28, 2011 

Service retirement benefits of 1155'" of IinaI average sa1ary for each year of service credit is available to tier 1 and 2 
members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60'" of 
fioa1 average sa1ary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 
members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tier I and 2 members before reaching age 
60, tier 3 and 4 members before age 62 with 2S or more years of service credit and tier S with 30 or more years of 
service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by 8 fraction of 8 percent for each month that 8 member retires 
prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordsnce with their respective tier. 
Tier I members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 2S years of service. 
Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the 
service retirement age for the respective tier. 

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established as of July I, 2008 under the provisions of 
Chapter 92, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 (NJSA 43:15C-I et seq .. ). The DCRP is a cost sharing multiple­
employer defined contribution pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with a 
tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life iasurance and disability coverage. Vesting and 
benefit provisions are established byNISA 43:15C-I et seq .. 

According to the state law, all obligations of each retirement system wiD be assumed by the State of New Jersey 
should any retirement systems terminate. The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions 
and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required 
supplementarY information of each of the ahove systems. The financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey 
Division of Pensions and Benefits website at www.slate.ni.usilreasury/oensions. 
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Note VI: Pension Plans (Continued) 

Contribution Requirements 

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.1.S.A. 15A and requires contributions by active members and contributing 
employers. State legislation bas modified tbe amount that is contributed by tbe employer. The employer's pension 
contribution is based on an actuaria\ly determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and 
an amortization of the unfunded acclUed liability. For tbe fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the employer's pension 
contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount 

The contribution policy for TPAF is set by N.1.S.A. 18A:66 and requires contributions by active members and 
contributing employers. State legislation bas modified the amount that is contributed by tbe State. The State's pension 
contribution is based on an actuaria\ly determined amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and 
an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. For the fisca1 year ended June 30, 2016, the State's pension 
contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount 

The District's total payroll for the year ended Juno 30, 2018 was $25,103,527.22 and covered payroll was 
$17,987,261.00 for TPAF, $3,609,667.00 for PERS and $592,344.55 for DCRP. Contributions to the TPAF, PERS 
and tbe DCRP for the last three years made by tbe employees, Borough of Mountain Lakes and the State were as 
follows: 

Percent of Percent of Percent of 
Covered Covered Covered 

TIAf ~ ~ ~ ~ f!mill 

Employees 6/30/16 $1,225,978.86 7.18 % $270,451.59 7.19% $15,756.62 5.49% 
6/30/17 1,286,744.74 7.30% 269,066.63 7.30% 19,507.63 5.50% 
6/30/18 1,340,797.55 7.45% 268,327.62 7.43% 32,578.95 5.50% 

District 6130/16 N/A N/A% 477,365.00 12.70 % $8,594.47 2.99% 
6/30/17 N/A N/A% 491,396.00 13.33 % 10,640.91 3.00% 
6/30/18 NiA N/A% 536,504.62 14.86 % 17,770.30 3.00% 

State ofNJ 6/30/16 $1,338,330.00 7.84% N/A N/A% N/A N/A% 
6/30/17 1,928,495.00 10.94% N/A N/A% N/A N/A% 
6/30/18 2,510,088.00 13.95 % N/A N/A% N/A N/A% 

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $1,268,400.89 
during tbe year ended June 30, 2018 for tbe employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members as 
calculated on their base salaries. This amount and the State of New Jellley's Contribution to the TPAF and PERS for 
OPEB bave been included in the basic financial statements and the budgetary comparison schedule - Genera1 Fund as 
a revenue and expenditure in accordauce with GASB 24. 
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Note Vll: Public Employees Retirement System 

Summary of SIgnificant Accounting PoUdes 

For pwposes of measwiog the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred ioflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the PERS and additions 
toIdeductions from PERS fiduciary net position bave been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
PERS. For this pwpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due 
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Invesbnents are reported at fair value. 

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of 513,293,688.00 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plao 
relative to the projected contributions of aU participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the 
District's proportion was 0.0571073924%, which was an increase of3.99% from its proportion measured as of June 
30,2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of 51,070,362.00. At June 30, 2018, the 
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred ioflows of resources related 10 PERS from the foUowing 
sources: 

Difference between expected and 
actual experience 

Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and 

actual earnings on pension plan 
invesbnents 

Changes in proportion aod differences 
between District contributions and 
proportionate share of 
contributions 

District contributions subsequent 10 
the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resoun:es 

$ 313,020 
2,678,220 

90,521 

488,472 

536.504 
$4,106.737 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

5 
2,668,401 

67,752 

$2736,153 

5536,504.62 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District conlnbutions 
subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2018, the plan measurement date is June 
30, 2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred ioflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Yearepded June 30. 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
Total 

64 

$ 312,946 
472,244 
286,155 

(380,587) 
1277.39n 
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Note Vll: Public Employees Retirement System <PERS) (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July I, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017, This actuarial valuation used the fonowing actuarial 
assumptions, applied all perioda in the measurement: 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases: 
Through 2026 
Thereafter 

Investment rate of return: 

2,25% 

1.65% - 4,15% (based on age) 
2,65% - 5,15% (based on age) 

7,00% 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (setback 
I year for males and females) for service retirement and beneficiaries of former members with adjustments for 
mortality improvements from the base year of2012 based on Projection Scale AA. The RP-2000 Disability Mortality 
Tables (setback 3 years for males and setforward 1 year for females) are used to value disabled retirees, 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period July I, 2011 to June 30, 2014, 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7,00% at June 30, 2017) 
is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division 
of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries, Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following 
table: 

Long-Term 
Expected 

Target Real Rate 
Asse\Clap A!locagQn of&!!!m 

Absolute retum/risk mitigation 5,00% 5,51% 
Cash equivalents 5,50% 1.00% 
U,S Treasuries 3,00% 1.87% 
Investment grade credit 10,00% 3,78% 
Public high yield 2,50% 6,82% 
Global diversified credit 5,00010 7,10% 
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6,60% 
Debt related private equity 2,00010 10,63% 
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6,61% 
Private real estate 2,50% 11.83% 
Equity related real estate 6,25% 9,23% 
U,S, equity 30,00% 8,19% 
Non-U,S, developed markets equity 11.S0% 9,00% 
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11,64% 
Buyouts/venture capital 8,25% 13,08% 
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Note VII:Public Employees Retirement System (Continued) 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30, 2017. This single blended 
discount rate was based OD the long-teno expected rate of notum on pension plan investment! of 7.00"10, and a 
municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index 
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AAlAA or higher. The 
projection of cash flows used 10 determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employera will be made based on the 
contribution rate in the most nocent fiscal year. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected 10 be available to make projected future benefit payment! of current plan members through 2040. 
Thcrcfono, the long-lenD expected rate of noturn on plan investment! was applied 10 projected benefit payments 
through 2040, and the municipal bond rate was applied 10 projected benefit payments afler that date in determining the 
total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liabiJity to changes in the discount rate 

The following pnosents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 5.00%, as well as what the District's proportionate shano of the oet pension liability would be if it weno calculated 
using a discount rate that is I-percentage point lower (4.oo%) or I-percentage point higher (6.00"1o) than the current 
rale: 

Current 
1% Discount 1% 

Dccnoase Rate Incnoase 
(4.00%l (5.00%) (!i.OO~l 

District's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability $16,492,149 13,293,688 10,629,633 
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Note VIU: Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund arm 
Summary of SlgnificaDt AccouDtIog Pollcles 

For purposes of measuring the Det pensioD liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions, aod pensioD expense, information about the fiduciary Det positioD of the Teachers Pension and 
Annuity Fuod (TPAF) aod additions toIdeductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net position bave been detennioed on 
the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this pmpose, benefit payments (including refunda of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability for its proportionate sbare of the net pension liability that reflected a 
reduction for Stste pension support provided to the District The amount recogDi2ed by the District as its 
proportionate sbare of the net pension liability, the related Stste support, and the total portion of the net pensiou 
liability that was associated with the District were as follows: 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

Stste's proportionate sbare of the net pension liability 
associated with the District 

Total 

$ 

115.598,964 

$115598964 

The Det pensioD liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 aod the total pensioD liability to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by ao actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net pensioD liability 
was based on a projectioD of the District's long-term sbare of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of aU participating school districts and the State, actuariaUy determined At June 30, 2017, the 
District's proportion was 0.00%, which was a decrease of 0.00% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Stste (for the District) recognized pension expense ofS8,008,II1 and revenue 
of $8,008,111 for support provided by the Stste. At June 30, 2017, the StsIc (for the District) reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to TP AF from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Cbanges of assumptions 
Net difference between projected aod actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 
Chaoges in proportion and differences between Stste 

contributions associated with the District and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Stste's contribution associated with the District 
subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

67 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Of 
Resources 

S 753,546 
22,853,668 

521,664 

244,457 

2.510.088 
$26,883,423 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Of 
Resources 

$ 197,102 
19,960,889 

85,728 

$20243719 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note vm:Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund ITPAFlIContinuedl 

$2,510,088 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from State contributions 
associated with the District subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2018, the 
plan measurement date is June 30, 2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30. 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
Thereafter 
Total 

Actuarial Assumptions 

$1,269,328 
2,015,673 
1,685,385 

944,961 
1,071,318 

12,939.307) 
$4047 3S8 

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as ofJuly 1,2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied all perioda in the measurement 

Inflation rate 

Salary inCreBSell: 
2012-2021 
Thereafter 

Investment rate of return: 

2.25% 

Varies based on experience 
Varies based on experience 

7.00% 

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF members 
reflecting mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-year average of Social Security data from 
1953 to 2013. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2016 valuation were based on the results ofan actuarial experience study 
for the period July 1,2012 to June 30, 2015. 
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Note vm:Teacbm Pensiog and Annuity Fund CIPAF)(Continuedl 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7,00% at June 30, 2017) is 
determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment! and Division of 
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries, The long-term expected rate of return was determined 
using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class, These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are SUIIlIIl8I'ized in the 
following table: 

Discount Rate 

Asset Class 
Absolute return/risk mitigation 
Cash equivalents 
U,S Treasuries 
Investment grade credit 
Public high yield 
Global diversified credit 
Credit oriented hedge funds 
Debt related private equity 
Debt related real estate 
Private real estate 
Equity related real estate 
U,S, equity 
Non-U,S, developed markets equity 
Emerging market! equity 
Buyouts/venture capital 

Target 
AlIocatiog 

5,00% 
5,50% 
3,00% 

10,00% 
2,50% 
5,00% 
1.00% 
2,00% 
1.00% 
2,50% 
6,25% 

30,00% 
11.50% 
6,50% 
8,25% 

Long-Term 
Expected 
Real Rate 
ofR£!!!m 

5.51% 
1.00% 
1.87% 
3,78% 
6,82% 
7,10% 
6,60% 

10,63% 
6,61% 

11,83% 
9,23% 
8,19% 
9,00% 

11.64% 
13,08% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4,25% as of June 30, 2017, This single blended 
discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7,00%, and a 
municipal bond rate of 3,58% as of June 30, 2017, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bood Municipal Bond Index 
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA1Aa or higher, The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the 
contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year, The State contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions, 
Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future 
benefit payment! of current plan members through 2036, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan 
investments was applied to projected benefit payment! through 2036, and the municipal bond rate was applied to 
projccted benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability, 
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Note vm:Teachers PeQ3jon and Annuity fund CfPAFl£Continuedl 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pens/on liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following prescots the District's proportionate share of the net p_ion liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 4.25%, as well as wbat the District's proportionate share of the net peQ3ion liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is I-pereentage point lower (3.25%) or I-percentage point bigber (5.25%) than the current 
rate: 

District's proportionate 
share of the net pension 
liability 

1% 
Decrease 
(3.25%) 

$137,335,037 

Note IX: Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
(4.25%) 

115,598,964 

1% 
increase 
(5.25%) 

97,692,684 

P.L. 2011, c.78 effective October 2011, sets new employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer­
provided health benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage. 
The rate of contribution is determined based on the employee's annual sa1ary and the selected level of coverage. The 
increased employee contributions will be pbased in over a 4-year period for those employed prior to this new 
legislation's effective date with a minimum contribution required to be at least 1.5% of salary. 

Health Benefits Program Fund (HBPF)- Local Education Retired (including Prescription Drug Program Fund)- The 
State of New Jersey provides free coverage to members of the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund who retire from a 
board of education or county college with 25 year.! of service or on a disability retiremcoL Under the provisions of 
P.L. 1992, c.126, the State also provides free coverage to members of the Public Employees' Retirement System and 
Alternate Benefits Program who retire from a board of education or county college with 2S years of service or on a 
disability retirement if the member's employer does not provide this coverage. 

P.L. 1987, c.384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund and the Public Employees' 
Retirement System, respectivelY, to fund post-retirement medical bcoefits for those employees who retire after 
accumulating 25 year.! of credited service or on a disability retirement P .L. 2007, c. 1 03 amcoded the law to eliminate 
the funding of post-retiremcot medical benefits through the TP AF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the 
pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired stated employees and retired 
educational employees. As of June 30, 2017, there were 112,966 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits 
and the state contributed $1.39 billion on their behal£ The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by 
the State in accordance withP.L. 1994, c.62. Funding ofpost-retiremcot medical benefits changed from a pre-funding 
basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994. 

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L, 1992 c.126 wbich provides free health bcoefits to 
members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 
years of service. The State paid $238.9 million toward Cbapter 126 benefits for 20,913 eligible retired members in 
fiscal year 2016. 

70 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL ST ATEMENIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note IX: Health Benefit and Post·Retirement Medical Benefits (Continueell 

Summary of SlgnIn .. nt Accounting PoUcles 

For purposes of measuring the Iisbility, deferred outflows ofreaources and deferred inflows ofreaources, and expense 
associated with the State's requiIement to contribute to the Stste Health Benefits Loca! Education Retired Employees 
Plan (OPEB), information about OPEB's fiduciary net position and additions toIdeductions from OPEB's fiduciary 
net position bave been determined on the same basis as they are reported by OPEB. For this pwpose, OPEB 
recognizes beaefit payments when due and psysble in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 
value, except for money market investments and participating interest.earning investment contracts that bave a 
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost 

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability that reflected a 
reduction for Stste OPEB support provided to the Diatrict The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate 
share of the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the tota! portion of the net OPEB liability that was 
associated with the District were as foUows: 

District's proportionate abare of the net OPEB liability 

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB Iisbility 
associated with the District 

Tota! 

s 

80,334,638 

$80,334638 

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the tota! OPEB liability to calculate the net OPEB 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net OPEB liability 
was based on a projection of the District's long.term abare of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected 
contributions of aU participsting school districts and the State, actuariaUy determined. At June 30, 2017, the District', 
proportion was 0.00%, which was a decrease of 0.00% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the State (for the District) recognized OPEB expense ofS4,733,966 and revenue of 
$4,733,966 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2017, the State (for the District) reported deferred outfloW!! 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the foUowing sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on OPEB plan investments 
Changes in proportion 
State contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 
Tota! 
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$ 

s 

Deferred 
Outflows 

Of 
Resources 

154,741 

1,621,213 

$ 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Of 
Resources 

(9,500,856) 

1,775 954 $ (9 500.856) 
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Note IX: Health Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Begefits (Cogtinued) 

Aetuarlal Assumpdool 

The collective total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determioed by an actuarial valuation 
aa of July I, 2016, which was roDed forward to June 30, 2017. Thill actuarial valuatioo used the foDowing actuarial 
assumptiODS, applied to all periods in the meaaurcmeot: 

IofI.tion rate 

Salary increases: 
Through 2026 

Thereafter 

2.5% 

TPAFlABP 

1.S5 -4.55% 
based on years 
of service 

2.00-5.45% 
based on years 
of service 

2.15-4.14% 
based on age 

3.15- 5.15% 
based on age 

Preretirement mortality rates we", based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee MalelFema1e 
mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projectioDS from the central year using the MP-2017 
scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Annuitant 
MaJelFemaJe mortality table with fully generational improvement projectioos from the central year uaing the MP-
2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Disabled MalelFema1e mortality 
table with fully generational improvement projectioDS from the central year using the MP-2017 scale. 

The actuarial assumptiODS used the June 30,2016 valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies 
for the periods July I, 2012 - June 30,2015 and July I, 2011-June 30, 2014 for TPAF and PERS, respectively. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate for June 30, 20\7 and 2016 was 3.58% and 2.85%, respectively. Thill represents the municipal 
bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which 
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal boods with an average rating of ANAa or higher. 
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Note IX:Hea1th Benefit and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits <Continued) 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the new OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 3.58%, as well as what the District's proportional share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is I-percentage point lower (2.58%) or I-percentage point higher (4.58%) than the current 
rate: 

District's proportionate 
share of tho net pension 
liability 

Health Care Trend 

I%Oecrease 
(2.58%) 

$95,357,215 

Current 
Discount 

Rate 
(3.580/01 

$80,334,638 

1% Increase 
(4.58%) 

$68,412,978 

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.9% and decreases 
to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. 
For health maintenance organization (HMO) medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.9% and decreases to a 5.0% 
long-term trend rate after nino years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 10.5% decreasing to a 
5.0% long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicate Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5 .0"~. The 
Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future years. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as well as what the District's 
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcarc cost trend rates that are 
I-percentage-point lower or I-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

District's proportionate 
share of the net OPEB 
liability 

: 

I % Decrease 

$66,067,206 
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Trend Rates 

580,334,638 

1% Increase 

599,281,562 
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Note X: Deferred CO!!l!lCIl5!I!jon Plan 

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the "Plan") created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457(b). The plans, which are admini.!tered by the entities listed below, permits 
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to 
employees until termination, retiremen~ death or unforeseeable emergency or upon death to their beneficiaries. The 
plan administrators are as follows: 

The Maitrix Financial Group, Inc.lAmerican Funds 
AIGVAUC 

AXA Equitable 
Financial ResourceslFTJ Fund Choice/Security I 
MetLife Resources Lincoln Invesbnent Planning, Inc. 

Metropolitan Life Insurance Co. 
MetLife Insurance Co. of Connecticut 

Oppenheimer FundslBKCf Financial Group LLC 

All amounts of compensation deferred under this plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all 
income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are (until paid or made aV1li1able to the employee or other 
beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District (without being restricted 
to the provisions of benefits under the Plan) subject only to the claims of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School 
District's general creditors. Participants' right under the Plan are equivalent to those of general creditors of the 
Borough of Mountain Lakes School District in an amount equa\ to the fair maricet value of the deferred account for 
each participant. 

The lIIlIXilnum amount of deferred compensation for any participant for any taxable year shall not exceed the lesser of 
$18,500.00 or 100 percent of the participant's includible compensation for the taxable year except as provided by the 
limited catch-up provision which may effect a participant'siast three taxable years ending before a participant attains 
normal retirement age as defined by plan. 

During the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, the employees' contributions to the plan were $876,892.77, and 
$810,196.11, respectively. 

Note Xl: Risk Management 

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment 
Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the District is required to 
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its 
account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. 

The following table is a summary of district contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the state for 
benefits paid and the ending balance of the district's trust fund for the current and previous two years: 

District Employee Amount Ending 
Fi~al Y!:l!!: CogtributiQDS C;onyjbutiQIIll !l.~imbl!.aed Balance 
2017-2018 $ -O- S 26,152.93 $ 31,585.36 $ 318,131.87 
2016-2017 -0- 50,870.29 13,840.57 320,433.10 
2015-2016 -0- 55,101.73 74,038.57 306,108.35 

The Borough of Mountain Lakes School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage 
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural diaasters. 
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3~. 2018 

The District is a member of the New Jersey School Board Association Insurance Group (the "Group''). The Group is 
both an insured and self-administered group of school districts established for the purpose of providing certain low­
cost Property Damage, Employer's Liability, Automobile and Equipment Liability insurance coverage for member 
school districts in order to keep local property taxes at a minimum The District pays an annual assessment to tho 
Group and should it be determined that payments received by the Group are deficient, additional assessments may be 
levied Additiona\ly, the Group maiotaioa a contract of excess insurance with a commercial reiosuror to secure the 
payment of benefits. 

The District is a member of the Morris Essex Workers' Compensation Joint !osuraoce Fund (the "Fund''). The Fund 
is both insured and self-administered group of school districts established for the purpose of providing certain low· 
cost Workers' Compensatioo coverage for member school districts in order to keep local property taxes at a 
minimum. 

The District pays an aDDual assessment to the Fund and should it be determined that payments received by the Fund 
are deficient, additional assessments may be levied. Additiona\ly, the Fund maiotaioa a contract of excess insurance 
with a commercial reinsuror to secure the payment of benefits. 

The Borough of Mountain Lakes School District continues to carry commercial insurance coverage for alI risks of 
loss, including employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Note XII:Compensated Ah'l!l11!leS 

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB l6), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for 
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside 
the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. 

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District's personnel policies. In 
the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. T.P.AF. staff who retire, as per the 
provisions of the state pension system, and have at least 1 S years of continuous service in Mountain Lakes are 
reimbursed for accumulated sick leave up to a maximum ofS8,OOO.00 for teachers and $12,000.00 for administrators. 

In the district-wide Statement of Net position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one year are 
reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds as the 
benefits accrue to employees. As of June 3D, 2018, DO liability existed for compensated absences in the Food Service 
Fund. 

Note XIII: Contingent Liabilities 

The Borough of Mountain Lakes School District is a defendant in several lawsuits, none of which is unusual for a 
Board of Education of its size. Additional liabilities, if not covered by insurance, should not be material in amount 

Note XN: Subseouent Events 

The Borough of Mountain Lakes School District has evaluated subsequent events through September 13, 
2018, the dste which the financial statements were available to be issued and no additional items were noted for 
disclosure or adjustment 
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REVENUES: 

SIB'" SDUtC8S F __ 

Locol SDUtC8S 

TO/oI_ 

I!XPENOITURES: 
Inltructlon 
P_ ServJceo • Salaries 
_ Professional and Technical ServIces 
Oilier Purch.sed S.rvIces (400-500 1Ori •• ) 
_SUpplies 
Toxtbooks 

Total /naIrUCtIon 

Support S./V1cH 
Pe!oonaJ ServJceo· Employee _ 

Purchased PlUre.alanal and Techn/all Servlcoa 
___ • Educallonal ServIcea 

Total Support Slrvlc .. 

Total Expond/1urn 

TO/ol 0UIR0wa 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 
Budgotary Compa~lon Schedule 

Spaclel-..ue Fund 
For th. Fllcol V •• r End.d Juno 3D, 201. 

OrigJnal BudgoI 

BlmIIII IrIDJ/IJI 

$ 150,000.00 S 269,523.97 
268,000.00 35,251.00 

382.938.19 

$ 438.000.00 $ 887.713.18 

$ 150,000.00 $ 378,~.66 

20,37~.97 

270,000.00 (14,149.27) 
85,787.84 
5,09~.00 

420,000.00 473,878.19 

10,041.97 
88,987.00 

18,000.00 97,026.00 
18,000.00 194,034.97 

438,000.00 667,713.18 

$ 438,000.00 $ 667,713.16 
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ExhlbltC-2 

FIno! VorIInce 
IIlmQII &iIYIII ElDIIIQ Actual 

$ 419,523.97 $ 332,821.09 $ 88,702.88 
323,251.00 307,887.98 15,383.02 
382.938.19 310.234.49 52.703.70 

S 1.10~.713.18 $ 950,943.58 $ 154,769.80 

$ 526,sea.66 $ 488,112.60 $ 40,458.~ 

20,375.97 9.888.05 10,487.92 
25~,850.73 25U50.73 
8~,787.84 82,043.02 23,744.82 
5,095.00 3,488.88 1,806.14 

893,878.19 817,383.26 78,294.93 

10,041 .97 10.041.97 
88,987.00 71,603.98 15,383.02 
11~,026.00 81,958.32 ~,069.88 

212,034.97 133,560.30 78,474.87 

1,105,713.18 950.943.58 154,789.60 

$ 1,105,713.18 $ 950,943.58 $ 154,789.60 
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PARTD 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Required Supplementary Informatlan 
Budgolllry Comparison Schedul. 

Natlta RSI 
For the Flecol VI ... Ended Juno 30, 2018 

Natl A - ExpIImItIan of DIfferenc: .. betw .... Budgetary Infiowl and Outflow. end 
GAAP RevenuII Ind Explndlture. 

S!bIlIII 
SaurCHIInfIoWI of reoou"," 
Actual amaunls (budgetary basis) -revenue' 

from the budgetary comparlson schedule [C-l&C-2) 
Difference· budget to GAAP: 

The last State aid payment Is recognized as ravenue for budgetary 
purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this 
revenue until the subsequent year when the State recognizes 
the related expense In accordance with GASB 33. 

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP In thet 
encumbrancee are recognized Be expenditures, and the related 
revenue Is recognized. 

Total revenue. as reported on the statement 01 revenues, expendQure. 
and changes In fund balances - govemmenlal funds. [B-2) 

U •• elout!Jawe of resourcl. 
Actual amounls (budgetary basis) 'total ouUlows' from the 

budgetary compar1son schedule [C-l&C·Z) 
Differences· budget to GAAP 

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but 
not received are reported In the year the order Is pieced for 
budgetary purposes, but In the year the supplle. are received 
for financial reporting purpose •• 

Total expenditures as reported on tha statement of revenues, 
expendHure., and changes In fund balance •• governmental funda [B-2) 
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ExhlbltC3 

Special 
General Revenue 
El!!llI El!IllI 

$ 40,514,947.19 $ 950,943.56 

2,783.00 

16,694.47 

S 40,517,730.19 S 967,638.03 

40,524,367.41 s 950,943.56 

16,694.47 

$ 40,524,367.41 $ 967,636.03 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
PARTllI 
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Section L 

SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSIONS 
(GASB68) 

87 



BOARD OF EOUCAll0N 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

ScMd ... 01 tile O/ItrIct'l ~ S ..... 01 .... NII_ LIIIIlIIty. P£RS 

FIscal V •• t Ending Jun. 301 
201. 2017 

D~1IIct'I pIOpar1Ion '" tile net pIfI.1on IIabIIIV 0.0571073824% 0.0!550179939% 

DlAlcl'I ~ ..... 0/ tile ... pemIon ~ $ 13.283,688.00 $ le .... ,752.011 

Olllrtct'. covered employee payroll $ 3,809,587.00 $ 3,888,&7&.00 DtoIrtctI_ ..... oI tile ... pemIon~ ... 
pon:ontagl 0/ .. ...-ompq.e poyroI 388.28% "'1.88% 

Plan IIducI'"Y ... pooIIIorI ... perconIagI 0/ hi _ pemIon 

.-y 48.10% 0\0,1411 

Note: TN •• chedull do .. not contain ten )'UtI of ilfonnatlon II GASB No. ea was Implemented duma fIICII 
yu" ended.kN 30, 2015. 
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2<111 2015 

O.D56!iZ4873B% O.05425e8929% 

$ 12, .... ,222,011 $ 10,'58,374.00 

$ 3.758,885.00 $ 3,858.221.00 

331.!l8" m,ell1' 

47.82% 52,_ 

2014 

0,0543014056% 

$ 10,378,071.00 

$ 3.nO.222.00 

275.28% 

48,721\ 



BOARD OF EDUCA110N 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Sc;htdul. Df District CDntrlbuUDn .. PERa 

FIsc;aJ V.ar Ending Jun. 30. 
2011 2017 

~-- S 5'1,504.02 S .. 1 .... .00 
ConObiIonsIn_ ..... ____ 

(538.504.821 {4111.398.Q2) 

Contrlbullon defk:lencyf(ucell) S I 
OI,b1ch cove" employe. peyraU S 3,6OV,867.00 S 3,888,678.00 

C«*IIutIonI ... ~ at coveted ernpk1yeI pa)'fCII 14.88% 13.33 .. 

Nota: lNIlChedu5I don not c:ontIIn len ~ at WOltMCkln lUI GASB ND. ea .... 1mpIemented du1ng Ileal 
yurWed .u.30, 20'5. 
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201. 

S <n)l5,OO S 

{477.385.2!!) 

I I 
S 3,758,885,00 S 

12._ 

Exhlblt L·Z 

20115 2014 

.. 7,2aO.oo S 302.708.00 

{ .... 71288.~ (!!2.708.00) 

! 
3,858,221.00 S 3,770,222.00 

12.23 .. . .-



BOARD Of !DUCAnoN 
BOROUGH OP MOUNTAIN LAKES 

8chMut. of tIM DI.trIct. PrvportfCll\la .... of thI Net,.,..,. u.w.,. TPAF 

FlICaI V •• Ending Jun. 30. 
201. 2017 201. 201. 

DIItrkt. prCIPCIItIon of tM StIlle'. MI penIIon bbUIty 0,1714517882" 0.157157e985% 

DIItrId'. pIOpCII1Ion ...... of VI. SIMa'. nit penalcn lIebIUIy S 115,tlH,984.oo S 131,041118,887.00 

0I11rkt. covnd ampIayH ~ S 17.817,261.00 S 17.8204,187.00 

Dlltrlct'l prcportIonIIe Ihare of the nil penlion liability .... -"""""'-- &42.61" 748.12% 

Plan IIdudIry net poilUon IU • pmanIIgI of 1M 10111 penalon ....... 2U1" ... .... 

Not.: ThIIIC:hecIuJe doe_ not CQr1II1n *" Y'" of Inronn8tIan at BASS No. 68 ..... 1mp1em1tUd ckItIg heal 
~ tndId.u. 30, 2015. 
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0.17$51198742% 0.17012704233% 

S 110,1117,858.00 S 90,827,570.00 

S 17,1J71.7DD.00 S 17,353,355.00 

850.0'" 523. ... 

28.71% 33. .... 

..14 

0.176i503i204% 

S 89,42i',338.00 

S 1e,I54,168.oo 

527._ 

33.7.,. 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30. 2018 

PUBUC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

A. Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

B. Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rale changed from 3.98% as of June 30, 2016 to 5.QQ% as of June 30, 2017 In accordance with 
Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67. 

TEACHERS' PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND 

A. Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

B. Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rale changed from 3.22% as of June 30, 2016 to 4.25% as of June 30, 2017 In accordance wllh 
Paragraph 44 of GASe S!alement No. 67. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Schodu .. 01 ChIngea In lIMo Total OPEB Uoblllly IIId ReIad Rallo. 

R .... V .. r endIng Jun. 30, 
2018 2017 2018 

ToIoI OPEB iabilly 

SeMeo cool $ 3,283,160.00 $ $ 

Inlerest 2,531,093.00 

Changes of benellllorrna 

Dlfforancoo bolween expectod end octual opatIonco 

Changes of assumptions or other Inputs (10,104,352.00) 

Member conlrll ... lono 68,516.00 

Grooo boneIII paymonll (1,860,721.00) 

Nol chango In 10101 OPEB Ilobilily (e.o82,304.oo) 

Tolol OPEe lIabUlIy • beginning 8e,4 16,942.00 

Tolal OI'EB iolllllly· ending $ 60,334,638.00 S 86,416,942.00 $ 

Covorod • employeo poyroll $ 21,598,928.00 $ 21,310,883.00 $ 

ToIoI OPEe liability .. 8 percentag. 01 
coverod • employee payroll 371.97% 405.51% 

Nolo: Thlo achodul. do •• nol conloln len yea", of Inlormation as GASe No. 75 was Implomenlod during llseol 
year ended June 30, 201 B. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

2015 2014 

$ 

$ 

$ 



LOCAL EDUCATION 

A. Benefit Changn 

There were nona. 

B. Changn of AasumptloM 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

The discount rate changed from 2.85% as of June 30, 2016 to 3.58% as of June 30, 20171n accordance with 
Paragraph 44 01 GASB Statement No. 87. 
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Section D 

SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES 
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Section E 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Spoclll Rovlnul Fund 
Combining Schedule of Prog ...... _ .... and Expondllu ..... Budgobuy Balls 

Fortho Fllcal Vo.r Endod Juno 3D, 2018 

SIIII Fade"" 
!!!III ~ ~ 

REVENUES 
Slata Sources S 332,821 .09 $ 332,821 .09 S 
Fadera! Sources 307,887.98 307,887.98 
LocalSourcas 310.234.49 

Total R.v.n .... S 950,943.56 $ 332,821.09 $ 307,887.98 

EXPENDITURES: 
tnotructlon: 

Personal Sarvl .. 1 • Salart •• 100-100 S 488,112.60 $ 237,822.73 $ 
Purchasad P",!e.sloneland Technical Sa",I .. s 100-300 9,888.05 9,888.05 
01IIer _sad SarvIcII (4O().SOO!l8f\es) l00-SOO 255,850.73 10,448.73 245,402.00 
Glnersl Suppllel 100-810 82,043.02 298.40 
Textbook. 100-840 3,488.88 3,488.88 

Total tne!ructlon 817,383.26 281,748.n 245,402.00 

Support SI .. tCH: 
Purchssad Ptlllesslonsl end Technical Services 2(1().3()() 71,603.98 9,118.00 62,485.98 
Purchasad P",!e •• lonal· EducaUonal ServI .. a 200-320 81,958.32 81,958.32 

TolIl Support SI",lcn 133,560.30 71,074.32 82,485.98 

TolIl Expondlturn $ 950,943.58 S 332,821.09 $ 307,887.98 
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Exhibit E·l 

loCIl 

~ 

$ 

310,234.49 

$ 310,234.49 

$ 248,489.87 

81,744.62 

310,234.49 

S 310,234.49 



REWHUES 
S ............ 

Tog) StnI Rawnu. 

EXPENDITURES: 
... =tIcn: 

PetsonaI 5erYk:a - s.aan. __ andT __ 

0Ih0r __ (~500_) --ID T_ 
CO Teal .... tructIon 

Support Services: 
Pu'dIIIsed ~ Mel TedWcaI ServIC*S 

--.~-Total Support s.mc.. 

Total bpendttu ... 

BOARD OF EDUCATlOII 
BOROUGH OF llOUHTAI/I LAKES 

SpocIaJ _ Fund 
ConoIIInJng ....... oI ___ ... ~.IIudgotaIy_ 

for the flKaI V .... Ended June 30, 201. 

N.J. N.J. N.J. N.J. N.J. 
N_ -- _bile: 

N_ Nonpublk: 
T.-k Handlcoppod NulSlng T .... ~ SocwtIy 

~ !lsi limm ImISD - !lsi 

S 332,821.09 S 3.488.86 S 51.465.32 S 11.118.00 S 3,441.00 S 7.050.00 S 

S 332.82' .00 S 3, .... 86 S 5', .... 32 S 9,"8.00 S 3,04'.00 S 7JSI.OO S 

100-100 S 237,622.73 $ S S S S S 
'oo."lOO 9,888.05 

'0(>500 10,4411.73 
1Q0.-810 2911.40 
,1JO.e4() 3 1488.1N1 31488.88 

261l<Ul.77 31488.88 

2oo."lOO 9,118,00 9.118.00 
2OI>32ll 61 1956.32 51 1465.32 31441.00 1 1050.00 

11.014.32 51,465.32 9,118.00 3.441.00 1,050.00 

L332.821.08 ~.4U.88 S ~.485.~ $ .i.118.00 J,_ 3,44j.OO $ 1,050.00 $ 

ExhIbIt E-1. 

---258,257.91 

258~.91 

237.G22.73 
9,888.05 

10.4411.73 
2DUO 

2S8~.9f 

2511,257.91 



ID 
ID 

BOARD OF EDUCATIDH 

BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schlelule ofFodenI prog ..... Ravon .... 1Ind ExpondHu .... B~_ 
Forthe FiICaI V.., Ended June 30, 2011 

E.S.EA 

!l!III IIIILIJ. IIIII..IY 
REVENUES 

Federal Soun:eo S 307.887.98 S 12,566.00 S 10.000.00 

T_FodenIRo ........ S 307,887.98 S 12.566.00 S 10,000.00 

EXPENDIllJRES: 
1nstnoctIon: 

other Pun:haaed SaMces (~00-500 seriea) 11l().500 S 2~5,402.oo S S 
TOiallnatruction 245.402.00 

SUpport Sorvk:oo: 
Pun:hased p_ and TechnlcalServiooa 21l().3OO 621485.98 121586.00 10,000.00 

T_SupportSorviCH 82,485.88 12.566.00 10.000.00 

Total ExpondHu ... S 307,887.88 $ 12,568.00 S 10,000.00 

I!ahIbit E·lb 

LD.EAPortB 

bII£ p-
S 281,138.98 S • • 183.00 

S 281,138.98 ~1B3.oo 

S 2~1,219.oo S ~,183.oo 

241 .219.00 " ,183.00 

391919.98 

39.819.98 

S 281,138.88 S 4 ,183.00 



REVENUES 
Local SoU/CI1 

Total Local R ........ 

EXPENDITURI!8: 
111_: 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Spocfll RlVlnu. Fund 
Combining Schlelul. or LOCII Progl'lm RevenuH .nd !xptndHunl· Budgttlry Balla 

Forth, Flscil Y.ar Ended Jun. 30, 2018 

Lakll Driv. !II. LIIc .. 
Educ.tlon Education 

ImIl ESUlOddRD EsliiOlld2D 

I 310,234.4D I 248,488.87 S 21 ,395.60 

S 310,234.40 S 248,489.87 S 21,385.80 

Peraonal Services· salaries 10!J.l00 S 248,489.87 S 248,489.87 S 
Genoral Suppllol 10!J.Bl0 81,744.82 21,3D6.60 

Totallnltrudfon 310,234.4D 248,488.87 21,396.60 

Total~ ... S 310,234.49 S 248,4811.81 S 21,m.60 

100 

ElhlbIIl!.lc 

V.rtoUI 

I251Dll!laOI 

I 40,349.02 

S 40,349.02 

S 
40,349.02 

40,349.02 

S 40,34D.02 



SectioD F 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
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Prolect ntlellilul 

V.rfoUI Improvements to SChoofa 

Totals 

BOARD Of EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKElI 

Capital Pn>joc:Io Fund 
SUmmo.y _ute 01 Pn>joc:I Expo_ 

F .. 1110 YUt Endod J .... 3D, 2011 

R_ 
OMP Exl!!ndtu .... to Oat8 

Appnwll audgollry 
I!IIt AppropdatfoDl Prior."." CUrtlnt ."., 

9128/17 $ 17.218.215.00 $ $ 818,822.'7 

$ 17,218,2'5.00 $ $ 8'8,822.'7 

102 

lJnoxpondod 
ApproprlaUonl 
Jun. 39. 2018 

$ , UIIII,5I12.83 

$ '8,31111,5112.83 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

exhibit F·2 

SummalY Schedule of Revenues, Expendltullltl, and Changea In Fund Balance· BudgelalY Basil 
For the Year Ended June 3D, 2018 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Slate Sources· SOA Grant 
Bond Proceeds 
Contribulion from prlvale sources 
Transfer from capital reserve 
Transfer from capllal ouUay 
Tolal Revenues 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
Equipment (73X) 
Salaries (100) 
Legal Servlcas (331) 
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services (390) 
Construction Servlcas (450) 
General Supplies (610) 
Land and Improvements (710) 
Lease Purchase Agreements· Principal (721) 
Buildings other than Lease Purchase Agreements - Principal (722) 
Other Objects (800) 
Total Expendi1ures 

Excass (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Fund Belance • July 1 

Fund Balance - June 30 

103 

$ 

816,622.17 

816,822.17 

(816,622.17) 

$ (816,622.1D 



BOARD OF EDUCATlDN 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Exhibit F-21 

Schodul. of Project Rovonull. Exp.ndltu .... ProJoct Bllinco Ind ProJlct StalUl- Budgotary BIIlo 
V.rlQUI Improvem.nt. to Schoo .. 

From IneopUon Ind forthl Vo., Endld Juno 30. 2018 

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Slate Sourcel - SDA G .. nt 
Bond Proceedl 
Conblbution from private IOU","" 
Tranlfer from capital .. sarve 
Tronaler from capital ouItey 
TDlllRIvanuetI 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
Equipment (73X) 
Sllarlel (100) 
Lagal SeNlcea (331) 
Olher Purchaled Profe .. lonal Ind TechnIcal SINI ... (390) 
ConslrUcUon SIHVIceI (450) 
General SUppIleI (810) 
land and Improvements (710) 
Lease -.. A9reemenla- PrIncIpal (721) 
BUldInga other !hen Lea .. _ .. Agreements- PrtncIpal (722) 
0Iher Objecls (500) 

Tolal ExpendHu .. 1 

Exceu (deftclency) of rovenu .. ovor (under) e""endHu .. a 

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION 
ProjecINumber 
Grant Dale 
Bond_Date 
Bonda Authorized 
Bondoluued 
Orlglnal Authorized COlt 
AdditIonal Authorized Coat 
Revlsad Authorized Colt 

Pert:8ntage l .... a&8 over Original Aulhor1zed Cost 
Percentage Completed 
OrIginal Target CompteUon Date 
Revtsed Tarull Comj>IeUon Date 

$ 

Prfor Pododl 

NlA 
NlA 

9/28/17 
$ 17,218.215,00 
$ 
$ 17,218,215.00 
$ 
$ 17,218,215.00 

0.00% 
4.74% 

911/19 
911/19 
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$ 

CuIT!!!t Y-r 

$ 

818,822.17 

$ 
17,218,215.00 

17,218,215.00 

818,822.17 1,490,000.00 
15,728,215.00 

818,822.17 818,822.17 17,218,215.00 

(818,822.17) (818,822.17) ___ _ 



SectionG 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
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ENTERPRISE FUND 
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INTERNAL SERVlCE F1JND 
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Section H 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
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SChools 

Briarcliff 
lake Drive 
Wildwood 
High School 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Student AcUvlty Agency Fund 
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Balance Cash 
June 3~. 2017 Receipts 

$ 19,899.11 $ 155,474.53 
14,828.19 13,905.35 
25,363.42 44,952.26 

260,082.89 707,577.54 

$ 320,173.61 $ 921,909.68 
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exhibit H-3 

Cash Balance 
Disbursements June 3~. 2018 

$ 153,798.54 $ 21,575.10 
6,643.91 22,089.63 

50,622.14 19,693.54 
693,039.65 274,620.78 

$ 904,104.24 $ 337,979.05 



PayroH Deducttons and Wrthholdlngs 
Net Salaries and Wages 
IRS Section 125 Plan 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Payroll Agency Fund 
Schedule of Receipts and DIsbursements 
For the FIscal Year Ended June 30,2018 

Balanca Cash 
June 3Q, 2017 ReceIpts 

S 213,042.58 $ 12,538,258.14 
14,962,581.12 

11,077.21 31,163.38 

S 224,119.79 $ 27,530,002.64 
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ExhlbltH4 

Cash Balance 
DIsbursements June 30, 2018 

$ 12,703,164.32 $ 46,136.40 
14,962,581.09 0.03 

32,128.57 10,112.02 

$ 27,697,873.96 $ 56,248.45 



Section I 

LONG- TERM DEBT 

111 



Elhlbltl·l 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 
Long· Tlnn Debt 

Schedu~olSen.IBondt 
For 1111 FIsc:oI YI., Endtd Juno 30. 2018 

AnnualllllurtUtt 
01 Bond. O ..... ndlng 

June 3~. 2018 Rotlnld 
~01 Amount 01 1- Ba ...... Cumort Bala ... 

flIm2U IHII! !w!t !!III &n2!!!!I BIll ~~DI 32. zou Ym ~Y!!! ~21 aOjl 

Refunding 3/111112 $ 7,600,000.00 0III1M8 $ 510,000.00 4.000% $ 8,075,000.00 $ 435,000.00 $ 5,590,000.00 
0lIl15119 505,000.00 2.000% 
011115120 520,000.00 2.000% 
0lIl15121 510,000.00 2.125% 
09115122 505,DOD.OD 4.000% 
0lIl15123 5OD,000.00 2.250% 
0lIl15124 510,000.00 2.375% 
09115125 500,000.00 2.500% 
0lIl15128 515,000.00 3.000% 
0lIl15127 505,000.00 3.000% 
09115128 510,000.00 2.750% 

Refunding 10121115 2,975,000.00 01115119 405,000.00 1.750% 2,580,000.00 395,000.00 2,185,000.00 
01115120 410,000.00 4.000% 
01115121 435,000.00 4.750% 
01115122 455,000.00 5.000% 
01115123 480,000.00 5.000% 

$ 8,855,000.00 S 880,000.00 S 7,775,000.00 

11 2 



Purpose 

Technology Equipment $ 

Energy Conservation Measurn 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Long· Tenn Debt 
Schedule of Obllgallona Under Capital Le .. " 

For the Flleal Vear Ended Jun. 30, 2018 

Amount of Amount ISlued 
Original Outstanding Currant 
l!!!!! June 30, 2017 Ym 

249,543.00 $ 99,817.20 $ 

2,550,000.00 2,393,368.74 

$ 2,493,185.94 $ 
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exhibit 1·2 

ReUred Amount 
Current Outatondlng 
Ym June 30, 2018 

$ 49,908.60 $ 49,908.80 

285,837.95 2,107,530.79 

$ 335,748.55 $ 2,157,439.39 



Exhibit 1-3 
BOARD OF EDUCAl10N 

BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 
Budgetary Comparison SChed .... 

Debt Service Fund 
For the FIscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Variance 
Original Budget '"'at FInal to 

~ Ir.i!Dmrs §ygggl &IlIi! &IlIi! 
REVENUES: 

Local Sources: 
Local Tax Levy $ 1,023,628.00 $ $ 1,023,628.00 $ 1,023,628.00 $ 

Total- Local Sources 1,023,628.00 1,023,628.00 1 ,023,628.00 

State Sources: 
Debt Service Aid Type II 98,921.00 98,921.00 98,921.00 

Total- State Sources 98,921.00 98,921.00 98,921.00 

Total Reven.- 1,122,549.00 1,122.549.00 __ 1.122.549.00 

-- EXPENOITURES: .1>0 
Regular Debt Service: 

Interest 257,825.00 257,825.00 257,625.00 
Redemption 01 Principal 880,000.00 880,000.00 880,000.00 

Total Regular Debt Service 1,137,825.00 1.137,825.00 1.137.825.00 

Total Elcpandltu_ 1.137.825.00 1.137.825.00 1.137.825.00 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Ovar (Under) Expend~u"", (15,276.00) (15.276.00) (15,276.00) 

Fund Balance, July 1 15.276.35 15,276.35 15.276.35 

Fund Balance, June 30 $ 0.35 $ $ 0.35 $ 0.35 ! 

Recapilulation of Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over IUnder) Expend~"",: 
Budgeted Fund Balance S _ (15,276.00) S $ (15,276.00) $ (15.276.00) $ 



STATISTICAL SECTION 
(UNAUDITED) 

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. Pursuant to State of New Jersey Department 
of Education requirements issued for the fiscal year ended June 3D, 1994, only two years statistical data 
needed to be presented. Additional year's data will be included each year thereafter until ten years of data 
ispr=nted. 

115 



Financial Trends 
J-1 
J-2 
J-3 
J-4 
J-5 

Revenue Capacity 

STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited) 

Net PosHlon by Component 
Changes In Net Position 
Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds 
Changes In Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds 
General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source 

J-6 Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
J-7 Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
J-B Principal Property T axpayera 
J-9 Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Debt Capacity 
J-10 
J-11 
J-12 
J-13 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Direct and Overlapping Govemmental ActivHles Debt as of June 30 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Demographic and Economic Information 
J-14 Demographic and Economic Statistics 
J-15 Principal Employers 

Operating Information 
J-16 FUll-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program 
J-17 Operating Statistics 
J-1B School Building Information 
J-19 Schedule of Required Maintenance for School Facilities 
J-20 Insurance Schedule 
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Fiscal Year :rmru 
Ended June 30. 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

$ 14,906,299.43 $ 
14,966,285.41 
15,118,799.49 
14,298,517.50 
13,649,660.09 
13,312,932.31 
13,241,041.97 
12,768,038.00 
13,967,579.96 
13,874,941.20 

Source: District records 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

General Fund - Other Loesl Revenue by Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(modified accrual basis of accounting) 
Unaudited 

Hearing Impaired 
TuHion School Tuition IntsIllst 

3,738,374.40 $ 10,995,089.66 $ 1,053.97 
3,823,139.00 10,924,742.50 
3,927,540.00 11,034,511 .00 
4,088,575.00 10,016,239.25 786.04 
3,787,552.13 9,664,975.62 
4,153,191.18 8,965,093.44 642.78 
4,226,170.44 8,826,917.08 15,648.29 
4,166,884.00 8,391 ,078.59 
4,769,195.87 8,984,091.00 29,743.61 
4,843,046.00 8,851,108.12 34,769.33 

Exhlb/tJ-5 

Rentals Miscellaneous 

$ 140,000.00 $ 31,781.40 
140,000.00 78,403.91 
140,000.00 16,748.49 
140,000.00 52,917.21 
140,000.00 57,132.34 
140,000.00 54,004.91 
140,000.00 32,306.16 
140,000.00 70,075.41 
140,000.00 44,549.48 
140,000.00 6,017.75 
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BOARD OF EDUCAllOH 
BOROUGH OF MOUNI'AIN LAKES 

A..-I V ...... ~ AduIiI V ... ofT"'" Pf'opwtr • 
.... T .... AaaII Y-. ---

_'.>4 

T .... 

"""" _ ....... (Coony ....... 

FIKOIV_ 
EndOCI 

'**-
3'. v .......... - f!!!!!- """"'*""' - -..... Tu"-"dV" P'\de1Jl8illl .... V.....,TIUIItIIe fg'"=nV''' TuR.-

2tIOQ (1) S B.233,1oo S 
2010 17.~ 
2011 '1,947,000 
2012 20.1577.400 
2013 20,_200 
20'4 1P,814.200 
2015 18,352,300 
20UI '4,105.200 
2017 10,1<15,400 
2018 ',868,400 

(1' Revak.llUion CIffadiy. 

Souna:~Tu"""" 

l,17".sn.SlOO 
1,118.165.300 
1,167 .571UOO 
1,158,132.100 
1.062.7&6.QOO 
l,lJ7'D,2!M,200 
1.07S.078,800 
1,081,103,000 
1,088,417.aoo 
1,.QU:3,227.aoo 

• '.500 ' .... ' .... 
2."" 
2."" 
2."" 
2."" 
2."" 
2._ 
2."" 

S 96._,600 • ...... '00 • lOO,10:UDO 3,226,100 
101._.400 3,22S.1oo 
101,010,400 3,228.100 
94,307,800 ...... '00 
84.307.aoo ...... '00 
84,2M.7IXI 3,226,100 
DC,lll,DOO 3,226.100 ... .,.,... ...... '00 
13,587,2DO ...... '00 

Hole: AMi~. f'IIIJ*ed to be ........ ..,.. ~ at ...... (fair Of ...... Vliut) IItalIIIhed br -=h t;/;U'IfbOeld III tax.IIan. 

pep. --.11 oc:an When &hi Co&ny Board of Taxation ~ Treaswy to otdIIla........".. 

• T .... vaa.. 01 ~.1mpIM.-Md EqYpmenI 01 TeIIph:IM, T~ and....., Bra- can.,.,.. 

b Tax r.&.a.,. pet $100 

S 1.282.734,400 
1,288,418.000 
1,281.853,_ 
1,284,087,700 
1,1eo.78O,700 
1.181,.'5.000 
1,188,952,,&00 
l,lsaaoue.lOO 
1,111'7.o&1l.2DO 
',118,8'3,300 

S 1.43B.2D7 S 
1,21&0,4211 
1.215.171 
1,274,842 

' ........ 
1,264,800 

1IJ3,2DO ,.,..... ,.,..... ,.,..... 

1,284,172,607 S ,_ ... 
t,2!l3.06Q,D7t 
1,285,3&2,542 
1.1B2.0'7U00 1.'._.800 
1,1.,755,800 
1,183,DD2.100 
1,1IJ7,871,4OO 
1,200,718,500 

1,487,182.407 
1.432.427 ,lD1 
1.355.3lM.404 
1.283,aa.U50 
1.288,781U~47 
1 wnw 
1.311,415.553 
1,330.215,840 
1,3Z4,.r&,081 
1.353,122.834 

1.478 
1.471 , .... 
'.5IlO 
1.851 , .... 
'.6117 
'.730 
'.71S5 , .... 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
Last Ten Ascal Years 

(rale per $100 of asssssed value) 
Unaudited 

School District Direct Rate Overlapping Rates 

Total 
AscaJ Year General Direct 

Ended Obligation Debt School 
December 31, Basic Rate Service Tax Rate Municipality County 

2009 (1) 1.380 0.098 1.478 0.388 0.263 
2010 1.375 0.096 1.471 0.374 0.255 
2011 1.404 0.096 1.500 0.374 0.249 
2012 1.411 0.098 1.509 0.409 0.245 
2013 1.550 0.101 1.651 0.462 0.274 
2014 1.562 0.100 1.662 0.475 0.285 
2015 1.597 0.100 1.697 0.492 0.279 
2016 1.830 0.100 1.730 0.513 0.284 
2017 1.668 0.097 1.765 0.519 0.288 
2018 1.707 0.095 1.802 0.531 0.295 

(1) Revaluation effective 

Source: Municipal Tax Collector 

ExhibltJ..7 

Total Direct and 
Overlapping Tax 

Rate 

2.109 
2.100 
2.123 
2.183 
2.387 
2.422 
2.468 
2.527 
2.572 
2.628 
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Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2016 

General 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Fiacal Years 

Unaudited 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Percentage 01 
Net General Actual Taxable 
Bonded Debt Value of 

ObUgation Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property 

$ 14,795,000 $ $ 14,795,000 1.15% 
14,160,000 14,160,000 1.10% 
13,465,000 13,465,000 1.04% 
12,960,000 12,960,000 1.01% 
12,205,000 12,205,000 1.03% 
11,415,000 11,415,000 0.96% 
10,590,000 10,590,000 0.69% 

9,535,000 9,535,000 0.60% 
6,655,000 6,655,000 0.72% 
7,n5,OOO 7,n5,OOO 0.65% 

exhibit J-ll 

Per Capita 

3,475 
3,401 
3,223 
3,036 
2,659 
2,676 
2,470 
2,201 
1,992 
1,769 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 
As of December 31,2017 

Net Direct Debt of School District 
as of December 31,2017 

Unaudited 

Net Overlapping Debt of School District: 
Borough of Mountain lakes (100%) 
County of Morris - Borough's share (1.420%) of $ 217,187,521. 

Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt 
as of December 31 ,2017 

$ 8,814,400.59 
3,086,043.67 

Source: Borough of Mountain lakes Chief Financial Officer and Morris County Treasurer's Office . 

Exhibit J-12 

$ 25,386,215.00 

11,900,444.26 

$ 37,286,659.26 
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W ... Debt limit 

T .... ne\ _. __ 10 limit 

l..sgaJ _ matgIn 

T otaJ net dabt appUcable 10 1ha limit 
83 a pefcentage of debt limit 

00bI1ImiI 

T alai not dabt oppUcabIo 10 Jimll 

l..sgaJ _ m8J1jIn 

TO\aI nat ___ to Iho limit 

as a percentage 01 debllimh 

BOARD OF EDUCAnON 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Legal Debt Margin InlDmlllUon 
Last Ten FIscal y..,. 

Unoudlled 

~ DobIIIargin CoIculotlon for fiscal Year 2017 

EquaJizod vaIuIIlIon balls 
201. 
2016 
2017 

Avo_ equallzad vaJualion 0\ \axabIo propof\y 

Debt imIt (4 % of average "" ..... 78 ....... value) 
To\aI Net 001>. AppIk:abIo ID limit 

l..sgaJ -. fII8IlIIn 

F10caJ Year 

2Q1! ~ 2Wi 2!UZ 

Exhibit J-13 

1,323.263,_ 
1,3'1,804,.s2 

S 1.331.772.628 

53,270,905 
24,991.215 

S 26,219,690 

2!1111 

$ 51,934,036 $ 52,281,6'2 $ 52,661,105 $ 52,152,352 $ 53,270,905 

11.415.000 10.590,000 9,535,000 8.655,000 24,991.215 

S 040.519:038 S 41 .707:612 S 43,152.105 S -'4:097,352 S 28.279.890 

21.98% 20.25% 18.10% 16.41% ~.91% 

FIscaJ Year 

2IlI!II 2!IlJl 21111 ~ ~ 

$ 56.867.348 $ 51.418,262 S 08.707.142 $ 54.168.887 $ 52,463,579 

14,795,000 14.160:000 13.485.000 121980.000 12.205,000 

$ 42.03348 $ 43,256,262 $ 43.222.142 S .1,\86.687 S - 40.256,579 

26.02% 24.68% 23.78% 23.lI6% 23.26% 

Sou..,.: Equal_ ....... 1Ion ____ nod from Iho Ann'" ~ 0I1ho Slate 01 Now Jorwy, 
Pep r ....... 01 Trwawy. DMeIon of TIllLdon 
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Year 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Sources: 

Population 

4,258 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Demogr.phlc and Economic Slatlatics 
Last Ten Fiac:81 Y..,. 

Unaudited 

Par Capita Personal 
Personal Income Income 

370,111,889 86,922 
4,163 (Actual) 372,463,610 89,470 (Actual) 
4,184 348,138,506 83,207 
4,275 330,153,975 77,229 
4,269 345,716,427 80,983 
4,262 337,473,684 79,182 
4,288 338,348,928 78,90S 
4,332 (Est) 371,365,032 65,726 (Esl) 
4,345 (Esl) 357,580,465 82,297 (Esl) 
4,345 (Esl) 364,732,074 83,943 (Esl) 

Population information provldad by the NJ Dept of Labor ..... Workforce Development 

Unemployment 
Rata 

1.4% 
1.4% 
1.3% 
1.4% 
7.6% 
4.3% 
3.4% 
3.0% 
3.0% 

Penonal lncoma .... been estimated baaed upon the municipal population and per capita peraonallncoma pr_ 

Exhibit J-14 

P ... capiIa ..........-J lncoma by munlclp8llty II8Iimatad baaed upon the 2000 c.neu. pubIIahed by the US IIunMI of Economic Analyllia. 
U-..pIoyment daIa provldad by the NJ Dept of Labor ..... Workforce Development 
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 

Fairfield Industrial LLC 
GIM Mountain Lakes Investors, LLC 
Euroimmun US Real Estate LLC 
Mountain Lakes Realty LLC 
Deluxe Corportation 
ML Mansion on 46 LLC 
Mountain Lakes Club 
Zeris Brothers Inc. 
Individual Taxpayer 
VREP-2.01 Bloomfield LLC 

Total 

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Principal Property Taxpayers 
Current Year and Ten Years Ago 

Unaudited 

2018 
Taxable %olTotai 
Assessed District Net 

Value Assessed Value 

$ 15,174,100 1.28% 
8,450,000 0.71% 
5,898,400 0.500/0 
5,500,000 0.47% 
5,236,700 0.44% 
4,200,000 
4,000,000 0.34% 
2,912,700 0.25% 
2,732,700 0.23% 
2,718,300 0.23% 

$ 56,822,900 4.45% 

$ 

$ 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value 

ExhibitJ..8 

2008 
% of Total 

District Net 
Assessed Value 

Not Applicable 

0.00% 
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Employer Employees 

o 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Principal Employers 
Current Year and Ten Years Ago 

Unaudited 

2018 

Rank 
[Optional] 

Not Available 

Percentage of 
Total Municipal 

Employmant 

0.00% 

Source: ___________________ _ 

Employees 

o 

2008 

Rank 
[Optional] 

Not Available 

Exhibit J-1S 

Percentage of 
Total Municipal 

Employmant 

0.00% 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended Taxes Levied for the 

December 31, Fiscal Year 

2008 $ 26,170,297 
2009 27,096,374 
2010 27,142,846 
2011 27,495,959 
2012 27,859,870 
2013 28,293,119 
2014 28,884,233 
2015 29,447,982 
2016 30,310,374 
2017 30,921,006 

Source: Municipal Tax Collector 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fisc:al Years 

Unaudited 

Collected within the Fiscal Year 01 the 
Le~ CoUections in 

Percentage of Subsequent 
Amount Levy Years 

$ 25,862,220 98.82% $ 242,760 
26,796,802 98.89% 272,028 
26,804,557 98.75% 261,288 
27,141,568 98.71% 254,762 
27,258,949 97.84% 388,128 
27,940,792 98.75% 332,525 
28,715,660 99.41% 109,488 
29,200,517 99.15% 217,685 
29,893,484 98.62% 399,875 
30,716,659 99.33% 

Exhibit J-9 

Tolal Col/ections to Date 
Percentage of 

Amount Levy 

$ 26,104,980 99.75% 
27,068,830 99.89% 
27,065,845 99.71% 
27,396,331 99.63% 
27,647,On 99.23% 
28,273,316 99.93% 
28,825,148 99.79% 
29,418,203 99.89% 
30,293,359 99.94% 
30,716,659 99.33% 



Ascal 
Year General 

Ended Obligation 
June 30, Bonds 

2009 $ 14,795,000 
2010 14,160,000 
2011 13,485,000 
2012 12,980,000 

..... 2013 12,205,000 
N 2014 11,415,000 
CD 

201S 10,S90,000 
2016 9,S35,OOO 
2017 8,655,000 
2018 7,nS,ooO 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Rados Df Outstanding Dabt by Type 
Last Ten fiscal Years 

Unauditad 

Business-Type 
Governmental AcUvities Activities 

Bond 
Certificales of Capilal Anticipation 
Participation Leases Noles !BANsl ..EapiIaI Leases 

$ $ $ $ 

199,634 
2,675,148 
2,493,186 
2,157,439 

ExhIbit J-l0 

Percentage 01 
Personal 

Total Dislricl Income PerCapiia 

$ 14,795,000 4.00% 3,475 
14,160,000 3.80% 3,401 
13,485,000 3.87% 3,223 
12,980,000 3.93% 3,036 
12,205,000 3.53% 2,859 
11,415,000 3.38% 2,678 
10,789,634 3.19% 2,S16 
12,210,148 3.29% 2,819 
11,148,186 3.12% 2,S66 

9.932,439 2.72% 2,286 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

FuU-time Equ/ ...... t Diotrfc:t ErapIo_ by Func:tIonIProgra 
LaotT .. F1ocoI V_ 
~ 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 ~7 201. 
FunctionIProgram 

Instruction 
Regular 118 115 115 112 113 114 115 115 118 118 
Special education 130 123 121 121 122 124 125 125 127 127 
Other Instruction 
School sponsored/other Instructional 

Support Services: 
Student IU1d instruc:tion related saMcas 78 76 76 76 76 76 81 83 as as 
School administrative services 20 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 
General and business administrative services 9 9 9 9 9 9 8 8 9 
Plant operations and maintenance 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 27 
PupIl tnonsportaIion 

TaIBI 381 403 401 398 400 403 ifl5 376 ~ ~ ..... ..... _0 ___ 

"'" 



...... - Cost ..... - T_ 
....!!!!.- .......... E!I!!! ...... ~ ....... llaH 

200II 1835.0 S 35227,303 S 21,546 -3.18% 244 
20'0 , ..... 38,1 DIJ,288 2' .... 2...,. 237 
2011 ,.26.0 35,294 .... 21,708 -,...,. 23' 
20'2 181g.0 35,665,017 ...... 1.411% 228 
20" '638.0 37.-437 ...... ...... 229 

20'. ,585.0 ...... 7,83/1 23,122 0.55'" 2211 

20" ,SSM :M,BIM,272 22_4211 -3.01% 240 
20'. 15:U.0 37,142,T.KI 24.213 7.rrrt. 240 
2017 , ... .0 37,533_ 23 .... 7 -2.rs.. • •• 
20'8 1531.0 38,717,153 ...... 7._ ... 

aoun:.: DIancl .... 

Nola: EnraIIrnent baaed on annual OdDbIr diltrict count. -W 
VI 

BOARD OF EDUCA11DN 
BOROUGH OF IIOUHTAW LAKES --LaIlT ... ,...V ... 

U_ --- ...... -- ""'" -......... - - -1:14 1:11 1:10 , .. 
':14 1:11 1:10 , .. 
1:14 1:11 1:10 , .. 
1:,4 1:11 1:10 '" 1:14 1:11 1:10 '" 1:14 1:11 1:10 '" 1:14 1:11 1:10 '" 1:'4 1:11 1:10 '''' 1:14 1:11 1:10 ,:5 
1:14 1:11 1:10 '''' 

A_ 
Doily A_Doily -- ADw ..... 
IADEl IADA> 

'635" 1,556.7 
, ... .0 1,572.0 , ..... , ...... 
181g.7 1,550.4 

'03II.D ',5IIOJI 
,585.0 1,514.0 

'506.0 ,_ ..... 
, .... .0 ,_ ..... 
, ... .0 ,,525.0 
1531.0 1,457.0 

",Chango" 
A_Doily ...-

11m< 
0_ 
-0_ -, .... 
1.1% 

"""'" -1.8% 
- 1."",-
Ul(, .. -

1IxhibiI ... ,7 

---...... ....... 
95."'" ..."" ....... .... '" ...... ....,. 
OS."" ...... 
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W en 

BOAlU) OF EDUCAllDH 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAK£S 

~Bu~I~lm~~ 
Laat Ton fiocaI Y ..... 
~ 

200!1 2010 2011 2012 2013 201. 
Di.trict BuildinG 

ElamlOIIN 
Wildwood Elemenlaly (1950) (1965) (1999) 

Square Feel 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 
~(-) 625 625 625 625 625 625 
Enrollment 488 488 474 496 491 488 

Middle School 
Brion:llff Middle School (1935) (1999) 

SquereFeet 21,600 21,600 21,600 21,600 21 ,600 21,600 
C8pIICity (students) 269 269 269 269 269 269 
Enrollment 305 305 325 319 301 310 

High School 
Mountain Lakes High School (1953) (1972) (2006) 

Square Feet 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 . 150,000 150,000 
Capacity (students) 750 750 750 750 750 750 
Ervottment 711 711 710 727 720 677 

bI~1l Cd!!a School [sz[ Calla 
Hard of Hyring Children (lg,4) 092Q) 

Square Feet 14,500 14,500 14,500 14,500 14,500 14.500 
Capaclly (students) 194 194 194 194 194 194 
Enrollment 131 131 109 n 75 eo 

QIbsI! 
CentralAdministtation 1,188 1,186 1,198 1.186 1,198 1,186 

SquereFeet 

Number 0' Schools aI June 30, 2018 
Elemenlaly = 1 
Middle School - 1 
Senior High Schoo.! • 1 
Special Ed School • 1 

Soun:e: Olalrlct F __ OffIce 

NoI.: Year 01 original consUuction is shown in~. Incn18S8S In sqUlll8'ooIago and capaciIy _the ........ 01 altOfalions 
and additions. Enrollment Is based on 111. annual October district count. 

Exhibit .... ,. 

2015 201& 2017 ~8 

43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 
625 625 625 625 
458 455 4.50 465 

21,600 21,600 21,600 21,600 
269 269 269 269 
304 317 315 307 

150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 
750 750 750 750 
672 672 675 721 

14.500 14.500 14,500 14,500 
194 194 194 194 
123 118 118 115 

1,186 1,186 1,186 1.198 



~ 

W ..... 

-~ ~forSc:hoalF .... 
1 H)OO·2Bl·xxx p-p-

.St::hooI F"aciitv f.tQQE emSll} 

w_ EIomeoUry -- SP346Q.06O.()t-1000 
LaJca Drive School 
M.L~SChoaI 

-School , ... as defWIed tndet EFCFA. 
(N.JAC.6k26-1.2 Md H.JAC.8A:2SA-l.3) 

Soun:a: Diltrict ~ 

...... 
""-

&HJm 

43.000 
21,500 
14"", 

160000 

239.100 

BOARD OF EDUCAnON 
BOROUGH OF IIOUNTAIN LAKES 

__ Fund 

Schedule 01 Roqul...t IbIn_ lot School FocIII .... 
...... Ton FIoeoI V ... 
~ 

Tan Year 
IOIII 2IWI 2IUZ 2IWI ZIWi 2!Ili 

S .... 110,225 S 151,544 $ 148,71" S 137,381 5 125,295 51018,41. 
821,417 lOS,D76 , ...... 110.783 80,711 l12,li35 

1.417,542 141,627 112,107 121,260 10,512 135,411 
3522. ~ ....lli.!!i ~ ~ ....!!!.!!!! 

S 7.:z",546 S 670.540 S 767.054 ~ $648.764 S 764.658 

&hIbII .... 1. 

2IU1 2lIl2 2IIll i!Illl 21IIIIl 

5123 .... $ 11B,ln S 110,298 5292,681 S 114.203 
03.IIOS 

73_ 
03 .... 

56_ .. .... 
131,471 .',202 134,124 206,024 2lI3.79!5 
338.000 ~ ~ -l!!.!!ll ~ 

U!!.5! S 652 .• ~ $845 .... S 809.151 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

Insurance Schedule 
As of June 30, 2018 

Unaudited 

Utica National Insurance Group 

School Package Policy: 
Proparty • Blanket Building & Contents 
Electronic Data Processing 
Property Damage 
Crime Coverage· Public Employee Dishonesty 
Comprehensive General Uab/Uty 
Automobile 
School Leaders Errors and Omissions Uabillty 

Berkeley ute and HeaHh Insurance Company 

Student Accident Insurance· Compulsary Coverage 

Rramen's Fund Indemnity Corporation 
Excess Umbrella Uability 

Monts Essex Workers' Compensation Joint Insurance Fund 
Workers' Compensation Insurance 

Utica National Insurance Group 
Surety Bonds: 

Treasurer 
School Business Administrator 

Source: District recordll 
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Exhibit J·20 

Coverage Deductible 

$ 68,065,794 $ 5,000 
1,450,000 1,000 

100,000,000 5,000 
100,000 500 

15,000,000 1,000 
1,000,000 

11,000,000 5,000 

1,000,000 

50,000,000 

100,000/500,0001100,000 

300,000 
120,000 

500 
500 
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Clirl.r C :Hwang, CJP.ft. 
'. 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 
OTHER MAmRS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Borough of Mountain Lakes School District 
County of Morris, New Jersey 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Borough of Mountain Lakes 
School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's basic fmancial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated September 13,2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audi~ we considered the Borough 
of Mountain Lakes School District's internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstance for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's 
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Borough of Mountsin Lakes School District's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealcness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. . 
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose descnoed in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intema1 control over financial reporting 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

CompHanee and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's financial 
statements are free of material miaatatement, we performed tests of its comp1iance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreemenlB, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on comp1iance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of TblJ Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School 
District's intema1 control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's internal control 
and compliance. AccordinaIy, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Montvil1e, New Jersey 
September 13, 2018 
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Timothy M. Vrabel 
Public School Accountant 
License No. CS000689 

Chris C. W. Hwang 
Certified Public Accountant 
License No. CC033704 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM: REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE: REPORT ON SCHEPULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS AND STATE 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REOUIRED BY TITLE 2 U.S. CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS (CFRl PART 200. 
UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REOUIREMENTS. COST PRlNCIPLES AND AUDIT REOUIREMENTS FOR 

FEDERAL A WARPS ANP 
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR LETTER 15-08 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Borough of Mountain Lakes School District 
County of Morris, New Jersey 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 

We have audited the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement 
and the New Jersey Compliance Manual Stale Grants Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. Borough of Mountain Lakes School 
District's major state programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results Section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to 
its state programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's 
major state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States; in compliance with the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, 
Department of Education, State of New Jersey; Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards; and New Jersey Office of 
Management and Budget Circular leiter 15·08 Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants and 
Slate Aid. Those 
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standards, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal RegulatioDB (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Reaujrements, Cost 
Principles. and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circular Letter 15-08 require that we 
plan and perform !he audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whelher noncompliance wi!h !he types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could bave a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's compliance wi!h !hose 
requirements and performing such olber procedures 811 we cODBidered necessary in !he circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a re8lIOnable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination 
of Borough ofMouotain Lakes School District's compliance wi!h !hose requirements. 

Opinion on Each Major State program 

In our opinion, !he Borough of Mountain Lakes School District, in !he County of Morris, State of New Jersey, complied, 
in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of its major state programs for the year ended June 3D, 2018. 

Report on luternal Control Over CompHanee 

The management of Borough of Mountain Lakes School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirementa referred to above. Iu planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we cODBidered Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could bave a direct and material effect on a major state program to 
determine !he auditing procedures that are appropriate in !he circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance and to test and report on intema1 control over compliance in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
RegulatioDB (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Mministrative Requirements, Cost Principles. and Audit Reouirements for 
Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, but oot for Ibe purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Borough of Mouotain Lakes School District's intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on !he effectiveness of !he Borough of Mountain Lakes School District's intemal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a state program wiU not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of state program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of intema1 control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in !he first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intema1 control over compliance that we 
coosider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe !he scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulatioos (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Admini.trative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Fluanclal Assistance RequIred by Tide Z U.S. 
Code of Federal Reguladons (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Adminlslradve Reaulrements. COlt Principles. and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 

We bsve audited the financial statements of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District as of and for \be year ended 
June 30,2018, and have issued our report thereon dated September 13, 2018, which contained an unmodified opinion on 
those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 
a whole. The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are presented 
for pmposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles. aud Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB 
Circular 15-08 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates direcdy to \be underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information direcdy to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the tinaocial statements or to the tinaocial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in \be United 
States of America In our opinion, \be Schedules of Expenditure of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Montville, New Jersey 
September 13, 2018 

12t::!.,~ 
Public School Accountant 
License No. CSOO0689 

Chris C.W. Hwang 
Certified Public Accountant 
Ucense No. CC033704 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

NOTES TO SCHEDm ES OF EXPENDITURES OF AW ARPS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Note I: ~ 

K-S 
Sheet I 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance present the activity of all 
federal and state programs of the Borough of Mountain Lakes School District Board of Education. The 
Board of Education is defined in NoteI:B. to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal awards 
and state financial assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards 
and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance. 

Note 2: Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and fioaocial assistance are presented using the 
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are 
presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are descnDed in Notes I:E and 
NoteI:F. to the Board's basic financial statements. The infoJDl8tion in the schedules is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uojform 
Adminj'trative Reouirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Reoujrements for Federal Awards. Therefore, 
some amounts presented in the schedules may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation 
of, the basic financial statements. Board has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Note 3: Relationship to Basic Fin.[]£jsl Statements 

The basic fioaocial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. 
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund 
to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant 
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until 
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. 

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the 
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current 
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A, 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, payments are not 
recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and recording of the state aid payments in the 
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant 
accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the 
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does nol The special revenue fund also recognizes the one or 
more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A, 18A:22-44.2. 
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NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AW ARPS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
FOR WE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

(CONCLUDEDl 
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Note 3: Relationship to Basic Fjnancial Statements (Continued) 

Note 4: 

Tho net adjU9lment to reconcile from the budgetaJy basis to the GAAP basis is 52,783.00 for the general 
fund and 516,694.47 for special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required SupplementaJy Information for 
a reconciliation of the budgetaJy basis to the GAAP basis of accounting for the general and special 
revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial 
statements on a GAAP basis as follows: 

&!!mI State Thml 
General Fund $ ·0· S 6,324,043.89 $ 56,324,043.89 
Special Revenue Fund 310,968.14 340,357.84 651,325.98 
Debt Service Fund -0. 98,921.00 98,921.00 
Food Service Fund 5,s7!.45 -0- 5,571.45 

Total Awards and $ 316S3959 $ 6 7§J322 73 $ 7979862.32 
Financial Assistance 

Relltiombil! to'S1!te EilllDcill R~QJlI 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related state 
financial reports. 

NoteS: Qk 

The amount reported as TP AF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on bebalf of 
the district for post-retirement medical benefits and the normal and accrued liability pension costs for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. TPAF Social Security ConlnDutions represents the amount reimbursed by the 
state for the employer's share of social security contributions for TP AF members for the year ended June 
30,2018. The amount reported as PERS Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on behalf 
of the district for post-retirement medical benefits for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results 
Flnandal Statement Secdon 

A) Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified 

B) Internal Control over financial reporting: 

K-6 
Sheet 1 

1) Material weakness(es) identified? __ -,yes X no 
2) Were significant deficiencies identified 

that were not considered to be material 
weaknesses? 

C) Noncomp1iance material to basic 
financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards Seedon • Not Applicable 

--yes X none reported 

__ -Jyes X no 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Part I - Summmy of Auditor's Results (Continued) 

Stale Financial Assistance Section 

F) Dollar threshold used to dctmnine Type A 
Programs 

K) Auditee qualified as low·risk auditee1 

L) Type of audilor's report on compliance for 
major programs, 

M) In!mlal Control over compliance: 

I) Malerial weskness(es) identified? 
2) Were significant deficiencies identified 

that were not considered 10 be 
material weaknesses1 

N) Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with N.J, OMB 
Circular 04·041 

0) Identification of major programs: 

GMIS NumberCsl 

18-495·034-5095·003 

18-495·034-5120-089 

18-495-034-5120-984 

18-495·034-5120·085 

18-495·034·5120-997 

18-495-034-5120·098 

$ 750,000,00 

X yes __ ~no 

Unmodified 

Name of Stale Program 

Rejmbursed T,PAF, Social 

Security Contribution 

Categorical Special Education Aid 

Calegorical Security Aid 

Additional Adjustment Aid 

Per Pupil Growth Aid 

P ARCe Readiness Aid 

K·6 
Sheet 2 

18-495-934-5120-101 Professional I ""ming Community Aid 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

SCH!illULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

(CONTINUED> 

Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 

K-6 
Sheet 3 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to 
the basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Cbapter S.18 of Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Not Applicable 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2018 

(CONTINUEQ) 

Part 3 - Schedule of Federal Awards and Slate Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs 

K-6 
Sbeet4 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including 
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and stale programs, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administmtive Requirements. Cost Principles. and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. 

Not Applicable 
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BOARD OF EDUCATION 
BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES 

SUMMARy SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 
AND OUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 201S 

K-7 

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state 
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Cbapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Reouirements, Cost Principles, and 
AudjtRcguimnents for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circular IS-OS. 

Not Applicable 
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